Note:

Wacon Obmf U

MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
DECEMBER 13, 2022
6 P.M.
AGENDA

Years of Service awards will be presented to county employees

beginning at 5 p.m. in the commission boardroom. A reception for those

employees and newly-elected Commissioners Danny Antoine and John

Shearl will be held in the hallway of the third floor of the Macon County

Courthouse immediately following the presentations.

. Call to order and welcome by Chairman Higdon at 6 p.m.
. Announcements

. Moment of Silence

. Pledge of Allegiance

. Closed session as allowed under NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) regarding

a personnel matter and 143.318.11(a)(3) to preserve the attorney-
client privilege

. Public Hearing(s) — 6 p.m.

(A) Lease with Sutton Broadcasting Corporation for use of space
on communications tower on Cowee Bald Electronic Site —
Emergency Services Director Warren Cabe

(B) Lease with Blue Ridge Broadcasting Corporation for use of
space on communications tower on Cowee Bald Electronic Site
— Mr. Cabe

(C) Macon County Community Transportation Program Application
— Transit Director Darlene Asher

NOTE: The board may choose to act on any of these matters
immediately following the close of the respective public hearing.

. Public Comment Period

. Additions to agenda

MACON COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX 5 WEST MAIN STREET FRANKLIN, NORTH CAROLINA 28734

PHONE 828-349-2000

FAX: 828-349-2400



9. Adjustments to and approval of the agenda

10.Reports/Presentations
(A) Fiscal Year 2022 audit presentation - Claire Chase, Martin
Starnes & Associates, CPAs, PA
(B) Overview of the 2022 Election - Melanie Thibault, Macon
County Board of Elections Director

11.01d Business
(A)Update on Highlands Middle School renovations — County
Manager Derek Roland
(B} Update on Nantahala Library/Community Center — Jack
Morgan

12.New Business
(A)Mountain Mediation Services Dissolution In-Kind Space Request
— Gabrielle Grant, Executive Director
(B) Southwestern RPO Travel Demand Model Socio-Economic Data
Projection for Macon County — Amin Mohamadi Hezaveh, North
Carolina Department of Transportation
(C) Consideration of Macon County Public Health Billing Guide
and Fee Schedule — Health Director Kathy McGaha
(D) Consideration of Community Care lease agreement -- Mrs.
McGaha
(E) Consideration of bid for Transit Department parking facility —
Transit Director Darlene Asher
(F) Resolution to exempt engineering services for groundwater
monitoring and reporting for the Solid Waste Department from the
provisions of Article 3D of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina
General Statutes — Solid Waste Director Chris Stahl
(G) Resolution to exempt engineering services associated with the
proposed turn lane required by NCDOT for the future Carson
Convenience Center from the provisions of Article 3D of Chapter
143 of the North Carolina General Statutes - Mr. Stahl
(H) Results and recommendation regarding the Request for
Proposal (RFP) for engineering services for the Solid Waste
Department — Mr. Stahl
(J) Declaration of Sheriff’'s Department service weapons for retired
officers to be declared surplus — Mr. Roland
(K) Discussion regarding 2023 commission liaison assignments —
Chairman Higdon
(L) Presentation of handbook for commission members - Mr.
Roland



13.Consent Agenda — Attachment #12
All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. No

separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of
Commissioners.

(A) Minutes of the December 5, 2022 special called meeting
(B) Budget Amendments #104-109

(C) Tax releases for the month of November in the amount of
$1,726.59

(D)Monthly ad valorem tax collection report — no action necessary

14.Appointments
(A) Board of Health — 1 seat
(B) Planning Board — 2 seats
(C) Vaya Regional Board - 1 seat

15.Adjourn/Recess

The next regular meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 10, 2023 at
6 p.m.



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

CATEGORY - PUBLIC HEARINGS

MEETING DATE: December 13, 2022
We have three public hearings on the agenda, as follows:

The first two hearings involve sublease agreements regarding the use of
space on a communications tower and associated space for transmitters
within a communications building located on the Cowee Bald Electronic
Site. The first hearing involves Sutton Broadcasting Corporation, where the
annual lease sum payments would be $6,000 plus two-thirds of the site fees.
The second hearing involves Blue Ridge Broadcasting Corporation, with
annual lease sum payments of $3,000 plus one-third of the site fees. These
agreements would run through the end of 2032. Emergency Services
Director Warren Cabe can provide additional details at the meeting.

The following documents are contained in the agenda packet:

o Copies of the two public notices, which appeared in the November 30,
2022 edition of The Franklin Press.

e Copies of resolutions declaring the property to be surplus and
approving the subleases to Sutton Broadcasting and Blue Ridge
Broadcasting, respectively.

Copies of the sublease agreement amendments for both parties, which
the board can authorize the county manager to sign upon approval.

A copy of the 20-year Communications Use Lease between the US
Forest Service and the county, which was approved in December of
2021.

The third and final public hearing involves the capital portion of the Macon
County Community Transportation Program Application, or more
specifically, Section 5311 (ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable state
funding, or combination thereof. A copy of the public notice will be
included in the packet. Please note that this hearing is in connection with




funding for Macon County Transit for the period of July 1, 2023 through
June 30, 2024. As you will note on the public hearing notice, the local share
for several capital items for this timeframe is $134,879, or 20 percent of the
$674,392 total. Transit Director Darlene Asher can provide more detail and
answer questions at the meeting. A Public Transportation Program
Resolution will be included in the packet for the board’s consideration. The
application must be submitted to the North Carolina Department of
Transportation no later than December 14, 2022, and a copy of the “FY 2024
Local Share Certification for Funding” form, which the county manager will
sign, is also included in the packet for your review. Finally, the packet
includes a memo from Ms. Asher with more details on her department’s
capital request.




PUBLIC NOTICE

Please take notice that the Macon County Board of Commissioners, at its regularly scheduled meeting
on Tuesday, December 13, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in the Commission Boardroom located on the third ficor of
the Macon County Courthouse at 5 West Main Street, Franklin, NC 28734, will consider authorization of
a lease with Sutton Broadcasting Corporation for use of space on a communications tower and
associated space for transmitter({s) within a communications building located on the Cowee Bald
Electronic Site, Macon County, NC. The annual lease sum payments are proposed to be $6,000 plus 2/3
of the site fees and the Macon County Board of Commissioners will consider a resolution authorizing
such lease following the close of the public hearing.

This the 21* day of November 2022.



PUBLIC NOTICE

Please take notice that the Macon County Board of Commissioners, at its regularly scheduled meeting
on Tuesday, December 13, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in the Commission Boardroom located on the third floor of
the Macon County Courthouse at 5 West Main Street, Franklin, NC 28734, will consider authorization of
a lease with Blue Ridge Broadcasting Corporation for use of space on a communications tower and
associated space for transmitter(s) within a communications building located on the Cowee Bald
Electreonic Site, Macon County, NC. The annual lease sum payments are proposed to be $3,000 plus 1/3
of the site fee expenses. The Macon County Board of Commissioners will consider a resolution
authorizing such lease following the close of the public hearing.

This the 21st day of November 2022.



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

RESOLUTION OF THE MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
DECLARING PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS AND APPROVING SUBLEASE OF THF,
SAME BY MACON COUNTY TO SUTTON BROADCASTING CORPORATION,

THAT WHEREAS, Macon County leases certain real property being described in the
Sublease Agreement to Sutton Broadcasting Corporation, a South Carolina Business Corporation,
a copy of which is attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, Macon County does not presently have a use for the same and will not need
the same for and during the term of the attached sublease; and

WHEREAS, Macon County desires to declare the same to be surplus for and during the
term of the sublease and authorized the entry of the Sublease to Sutton Broadcasting Corporation,
a South Carolina Business Corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-272, Macon County is authorized to enter
into the Sublease to Sutton Broadcasting Corporation, a South Carolina Business Corporation, a
copy of which is attached hereto, upon the passing of a Resolution authorizing the same and duly
advertising notice of its intent to enter the same at the Regular Meeting.

NOW THEREFORE, upon Motion of Commissioner ,
seconded by Commissioner , and duly approved, be it hereby
resolved by the by the Macon County Board of Commissioners as follows:

RESOLVED, that Macon County does hereby declare the real property described in the
Sublease to Sutton Broadcasting Corporation, a South Carolina Business Corporation, a copy of
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to be surplus property and it will
not be needed by Macon County during the term of the sublease; and

RESOLVED, that Macon County does hereby authorize the entry into the Sublease to
Sutton Broadcasting Corporation, a South Carolina Business Corporation, a copy of which is
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and

RESOLVED, that Derek Roland, Macon County Manager, is hereby authorized and
directed to fill in any blanks upon the same and execute said Sublease to Sutton Broadcasting
Corporation, a South Carolina Business Corporation, on behalf of Macon County; and



RESOLVED, that Macon County gave due notice of its Intent enter such Sublease as
required by N.C. Gen. Stat § 160-272.

Adopted at the December 13, 2022, Regular Meeting of the Macon County Board of
Commissioners.

Chairman
Macon County Board of County Commissioners

ATTEST:

Derek Roland, Macon County Manager
and Ex Officio Clerk to the Board



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

RESOLUTION OF THE MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
DECLARING PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS AND APPROVING SUBLEASE OF THE
SAME BY MACON COUNTY TO BLUE RIDGE BROADCASTING CORPORATION.

THAT WHEREAS, Macon County leases certain real property being described in the
Sublease Agreement to Blue Ridge Broadcasting Corporation, a North Carolina non-profit
corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, Macon County does not presently have a use for the same and will not need
the same for and during the term of the attached sublease; and

WHEREAS, Macon County desires to declare the same to be surplus for and during the
term of the sublease and authorized the entry of the Sublease to Blue Ridge Broadcasting
Corporation, a North Carolina non-profit corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-272, Macon County is authorized to enter
into the Sublease to Blue Ridge Broadcasting Corporation, a North Carolina non-profit
corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto, upon the passing of a Resolution authorizing the
same and duly advertising notice of its intent to enter the same at the Regular Meeting.

NOW THEREFORE, upon Motion of Commissionet ,
seconded by Commissioner ,and duly approved, be it hereby
resolved by the by the Macon County Board of Commissioners as follows:

RESOLVED, that Macon County does hereby declare the real property described in the
Sublease to Blue Ridge Broadcasting Corporation, a North Carolina non-profit corporation, a copy
of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to be surplus property and it will
not be needed by Macon County during the term of the sublease; and

RESOLVED, that Macon County does hereby authorize the entry into the Subiease to Blue
Ridge Broadcasting Corporation, a North Carolina non-profit corporation, a copy of which is
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and

RESOLVED, that Derek Roland, Macon County Manager, is hereby authorized and
directed to fill in any blanks upon the same and execute said Sublease to Blue Ridge Broadcasting
Corporation, a North Carolina non-profit corporation, on behalf of Macon County; and



RESOLVED, that Macon County gave due notice of its Intent enter such Sublease as
required by N.C. Gen. Stat § 160-272.

Adopted at the December 13, 2022, Regular Meeting of the Macon County Board of
Commissioners.

Chairman
Macon County Board of County Commissioners

ATTEST:

Derek Roland, Macon County Manager
and Ex Officio Clerk to the Board



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

USE OF SPACE ON COMMUNICATIONS TOWER AND USE OF
ASSOCIATED TRANSMITTER BUILDING SUBLEASE AGREEMENT
AMENDMENT

This Use of Space on Communications Tower and Use of Associated Transmitter Building
Sublease Agreement Amendment is made and entered into this the _ day of .
20__, by and between Macon County, North Carolina, a North Carolina County and Body Politic
(hereinafter referred to as the “Sublessor™), and Sutton Radiocasting Corporation, a South
Carolina Business Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Sublessee™),

THAT WHEREAS, Sublessee presently holds the Federal Communication Commission (FCC)
licenses for Class A FM Station WNCC-FM (FCC Facility Identification Number 14551)
assigned to the community of Franklin, North Carolina, FM Translator Station W285FD (FCC
Facility Identification Number 155806) assigned to the community of Franklin, North Carolina
(hereinafter referred to as the “Stations™); and

WHEREAS, Sublessor presently has a Lease with the United States of America, acting through
the Forest Service, Department of Agriculture, for the Cowee Bald Communications site as shown
therein, a copy of said Lease is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as if more
fully set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, Sublessee desires to obtain from Sublessor, a use of space on communications tower
and use of associated transmitter building sublease agreement from the Sublessor which will
permit the location of the antenna and the use of the associated transmitter building for the Stations
at Cowee Bald Communications site as referenced in the Lease above referenced; and

WHEREAS, Sublessor is willing to enter this Use of Space on Communications Tower and Use
of Associated Transmitter Building Sublease Agreement with Sublessee, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth hereinbelow.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms and conditions contained
herein, the parties hereto do agree as follows:



L. SUBLEASEHOLD INTEREST. Sublessor sublets to Sublessee, and the Sublessee
subleases from Sublessor the following:

A. Those sections of the Tower (which Tower is colored in yellow on the Cowee
Bald Communication Site Plan attached to the Lease Agreement referenced above)
which are not being used by either Macon County or Jackson County and which
are necessary for operation by Lessee’s Stations and such related equipment as is
required for the efficient and effective operation of the Stations, and which are
specifically approved of by Sublessor and, to the extent necessary, which are
specifically approved of in writing by the United State of America, acting
through the Forest Service, Department of Agriculture. Such rights of use by
Sublessee shall be non- exclusive and shall in no way interfere with the broadcast
signals or other rights of existing users of the Cowee Bald Communications Site:

B. The non-exclusive right-of-way space on said Tower and non-exclusive right-of-
way space to and from the Transmitter Building (which Building is numbered
“1" and is colored in orange on the Cowee Bald Communication Site Plan
attached to the Lease Agreement referenced above) for the connection, and
passage by cables, wires and transmission lines and any transmission equipment
required for the operation of the Stations. Such rights of use by Sublessee shall
be non-exclusive and shall inno way interfere with the broadeast signal or rights
of existing users of the Cowee Bald Communications Site;

C. The non-exclusive access to said Tower and said Transmitter Building for the
purpose of operating broadcast equipment owned or operated by Lessee located
there. Such rights of use by Sublessee shall be non-exclusive and shall in no way
interfere with the broadcast signal or other rights of existing users of the Cowee
Bald Communications Site;

D. Sublessor and Sublessee recognize and agree that the Cowee Bald
Communication Site is primarily an emergency communication site and as such,
Sublessor specifically reserves the right to cancel this Use of Space on
Communications Tower and Use of Associated Transmitter Building Sublease
Agreement, without liability, should it hereafter determine within its discretion
the need to do so in order to maintain and use the Cowee Bald Communication
Site as an emergency communicationssite. Sublessor reserves the right to cancel
this Use of Space on Communications Tower and Use of Associated Transmitter
Building Sublease Agreement without liability should it determine within its
discretion that the use made or to be made by Sublessee interferes or will
interfere with the rights of existing users of the Cowee Bald Communications
Site;

E. If Sublessee does cause inference with the broadcast signal of existing users of
the Cowee Bald Communications Site, then Sublessor Lessee shall have the right
to immediately terminate this Use of Space on Communications Tower and Use



of Associated Transmitter Building Sublease Agreement;

F. Sublessee shall operate its Station in full compliance with all FCC Rules and
Regulations;
G. It is agreed and understood that Sublessee shall, at its sole cost, undertake a tower

study/engineering study prior making any significant changes to the site equipment such
as new antennae, new transmitters, etc.,, hereunder to determine if the same will
interfere with the broadcast signal of existing users of the Cowee Bald
Communications Site. The same must show that all planned use by Sublessee
hereunder will not interfere with the broadcast signal of existing users of the
Cowee Bald Communications Site. A copy of the same shall be delivered unto
Sublessor upon completion. All use by Sublessee hereunder must be in full
compliance with FCC Rules and Regulations, all other State and Federal
Regulations, and approved by the United States Forestry Service if such approval
isnecessary;

TERM OF SUBLEASE. Upon all the terms and conditions of this Sublease, Sublessee
shall have and hold the non-exclusive rights provided for herein for the period beginning
January 1,2023 at midnight until December 31,2032 at 11:59 PM fora period often (10) years unless this
Sublease is sooner terminated as specifically hereinafter provided. Prior to the end of the
Termofthis Sublease, Sublessee shall cause all of its fixtures and property to be removed
from the subleased premises at its sole expense and shall cause any and all repairs that
are necessary to restore the subleased premises to the conditions which existed
immediately preceding the beginning of this sublease, reasonable wear and tear excepted;

RENT: Sublessee shall pay to Sublessor BASE RENT as follows:

A. BASE RENT: Sublessee’s base rent for each calendar year of this lease shali be as
follows:

2023  $615/month
2024 $633/month
2025 $652/month
2026  $672/month
2027  $692/month
2028 $713/month
2029  $734/month
2030  $756/month
2031  $779/month
2032 $802/month

ASSIGNMENT. The Sublessee shall have no right to assign this Sublease and its rights
under the Sublease to any affiliate or subsidiary of the Sublessee or subsequent owner of



10.

4

Lessee's Stations, without the consent of Sublessor and the United States of America, acting
through the Forest Service, Department of Agriculture;

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE. Sublessee shall be responsible for all maintenance
and repair of the Tower and the Tower supporting structures and the Transmitter Building
to be used hereunder by the Sublessee;

PAYMENT OF TAXES. Sublessee shall be responsible for the payment of any personal
property taxes imposed against the fixtures or equipment on the subleased premises
which are owned by Sublessee;

UTILITIES. Sublessor shall pay when due all electric and other utility charges made
against the subleased premises during the term of this sublease:

INSURANCE. Sublessor shall maintain adequate insurance coverage against fire, storm
or other casualty loss or damage to Sublessor's property, as well as liability insurance
against personal injury or property damage. Such insurance shall specifically provide for
coverage for the repair and replacement of all structures, machinery and equipment
owned by Sublessor located on or adjacent to, the Tower.

Sublessee shall maintain adequate insurance coverage against fire, storm or other casualty
loss or damage to Sublessee's property, as well as general liability insurance against
personal injury of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00). Evidence of said
insurance shall be provided to Sublessor upon request of Sublessor. Failure to maintain said
general liability policy by Sublessee shall result in the immediate termination of this
Lease;

DAMAGETO OR DESTRUCTION OF THE TOWER. Ifthe Tower subject to this Sublease
or any part thereof, or any equipment thereon shall be wholly or materially damaged or
destroyed, at the sole option of the Sublessor, the Sublessormay repair, restore and/or
replace the same, at the expense of Sublessor, to the condition which existed immediately
prior to the occurrence of such casualty.

However, in the event the damage to the Tower subject to this Sublease or any part thereof,
or any equipment thercon, cannot be repaired within sixty (60) days (as reasonably
estimated by Sublessor as soon as practicable after the occurrence of such damage)
Sublessor may terminate this Lease as of the date of such damage:

EMINENT DOMAIN. If the Tower subject to this Sublease and/or the Transmitter
Building Parcel subleased hereunder shall be appropriated or taken under the power of
eminent domain by any public or quasi-public authority, this Sublease shall be
terminated as of the date of such taking and Sublessee shall thereupon be released from



11.

12.

13.

any further liability hereunder. The date of such taking shall be the date on which legal
title shall vest in the condemning authority;

ACCESS TO LEASED PREMISES. It is mutually understood and agreed between the
parties that Macon County, Jackson County and Sublessee may maintain broadcast
apparatus on the Tower subject to this Sublease. Sublessor, Sublessee and all others
having the right to use such Tower shall have the right to non-exclusive access to such
Tower for the purpose of operating, maintaining, inspecting and repairing such broadcast
apparatus;

USE OF TOWER. Sublessee shall not take any action which will cause or permit electrical
interference to the broadcast signal of any existing electronic communications apparatus
on the Tower subject to this Sublease or otherwise interfere with the broadcast signal or
rights of any of the existing users of the Cowee Bald Communications Site. Sublessee
shall be liable to Sublessor and shall indemnify Sublessor for any loss or damage to
Sublessor's equipment, or for destructive electrical interference to the communications
signals of Sublessor, consequential or otherwise, occasioned by, growing out of, or
arising from any act or failure to act by Sublessee, its agents or employees, including such
acts or failures to act which Lessee shall suffer to exist or continue to exist on the real
property of Sublessor or such Tower.

Any breach by Sublessee of Sublessor's right of use of the Tower as defined herein, shall
confer upon the Sublessor the right to immediately terminate this Sublease without
liability. Such rights shall be in addition to, and exclusive of such other rights contained
in this Sublease or such rights at law or equity which Sublessor may possess.

INDEMNIFICATION OF PARTIES. Sublessor shall have no liability for any loss or
damage due to personal injury, property damage, libel or slander, or electrical
interference, caused by Sublessee its agents, or employees, and Sublessee will indemnify
and save Sublessor harmless from any loss, damage or lability, consequential or
otherwise occasioned by, growing out of, or arising, or resulting in connection with,
Sublessee or any act or failure to act by Sublessee, its agents, or employees. Sublessee
shall have no liability for any loss or damage due to personal injury, property damage,
libel or slander, or electrical interference caused by Sublessor;

14. AUTHORIZATION. Sublessorand Sublessee respectively representand warranttothe other

15.

that all necessary approvals and/or corporate action has been duly taken to authorize the
executionand delivery of this Sublease and the performance or observance of the provisions
of this Sublease. Additionally, Sublessor represents and warrants to the Sublessee that the
necessary consent and/or approval of this Sublease have been obtained from the United
States of America, acting through the Forest Service, Department of Agriculture, owner
of the real property in which such tower and transmitter building parcel are situate. Absence
of the landowner's consent and/or approval at any time during the Term shall grant the
Sublessor and the Sublessee the right to immediately terminate the Lease without further
liability;

NO WAIVER. Failure or delay on the part of either Sublessor or Sublessee to exercise any



16.

17.

18.

19.

right, power, or privilege hereunder shall not operate as a waiver thereof;

NOTICE. Any and all notices, demands or other communications required by this Lease
or by law, or desired to be given hereunder, by any party shall be in writing and shall be
validly given or made to another party if served either personally or if deposited in the
United States mail, certified, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. If such notice,
demand or other communication be given by mail, such shall be conclusively deemed
given as of the date shown on the return receipt if the same is deposited in the United
States mail addressed to the party to whom such notice, demand or other communication
is to be given as hereinafter set forth:

If to Lessor:

Macon County

Attention: County Manager

5 West Muain Street Franklin, North Carolina 28734

If to Lessee:

Georgia-Carolina Radiocasting Companies
Attention. Douglas M. Sutton, Jr.

Post Office Dravwer E

Toccoa, Georgia 30577

Any party hereto may change its address for the purpose of receiving notice, demands and
other communications as herein provided by a written notice given in the manner aforesaid
to the other party or parties hereto;,

AGENTS AND PARTIES. From time to time Lessor or Lessee by notice as aforesaid may
appoint one or more agents to act for them;

ATTACHMENTS, SCHEDULES AND EXHIBITS. Ail Exhibits, Appendices and
Schedules attached to this Lease shall be deemed part of this Lease and incorporated herein,
where applicable, as if fully set forth herein.

THAT THE LEASE BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ACTING
THROUGH THE FOREST SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, AND
MACON COUNTY, AND THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS THEREOF, A COPY OF
SAID LEASE BEING ATTACHED HERETO ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY
REFERENCE AS IF MORE FULLY SET FORTH HEREIN. TO THE EXTENT THAT
ANY OF THE FOREGOING TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS USE OFSPACE
ON COMMUNICATIONS TOWER AND USE OF ASSOCIATED TRANSMITTER
BUILDING SUBLEASE AGREEMENT CONFLICT WITH OR ARE INCONSISTENT
WITH SAID LEASE AGREEMENT, THEN THE TERMS OF SAID LEASE
AGREEMENT SHALL PREVAIL, IT BEING THE SPECIFIC INTENT OF BOTH
PARTIES HERETO NOT TO SUBLEASE INCONSISTENTLY WITH SAID LEASE.,



20.

ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SUBLESSEE.

All development, operation and maintenance by Sublessee of the authorized facility,
improvements, and equipment located on the property shall be in accordance with
stipulations in the communications site plan approved by the Authorized Officer of the
United States Forest Service. If required by Authorized Officer of the United States
Forest Service, all plans for development, layout, construction, or alteration of
improvements on the property, as well as revisions of such plans, must be prepared by
a licensed engineer, architect, and/or landscape architect. Such plans must be approved
in writing by the Authorized Officer of the United States Forest Service before
commencement of any work. After completion, as-built plans, maps, surveys, or other
similar information will be provided to the Authorized Officer of the United States
Forest Service and appended to the communications site plan;

The Sublessee will comply with applicable Federal, State, county, and municipal
laws, regulations and standards for public health and safety, environmental
protection, siting, construction, operation, and maintenance in exercising the rights
granted by this Sublease. The obligations of the Sublessee under this lease are not
contingent upon any duty of the Authorized Officer of the United States Forest
Service, or other agent of the United States, to inspect the premises. A failure by the
United States, or other governmental officials, to inspect is not a defense to
noncompliance with any of the terms or conditions of this lease. Sublessee waives all
defenses of laches or estoppel against the United States. The Sublessee shall at all
times keep the title of the United States to the property free and clear of all liens and
encumbrances;

Use of communications equipment is contingent upon the possession of a valid
Federal Communication Commission (FCC) or Director of Telecommunications
Management/Interdepartmental  Radio  Advisory Committee (DTM/IRAC)
authorization, and the operation of the equipment is in strict compliance with
applicable requirements of FCC or IRAC. A copy of cach applicable license or
authorization shall at all times be maintained by the Sublessee for each transmitter
being operated. The Sublessee shall provide the Authorized Officer of the United
States Forest Service, and the Sublessor, when requested, with current copies of all
licenses for equipment in or on facilities covered by this lease;

The Sublessee shall ensure that equipment within its facility operates in a manner
which will not cause harmful interference with the operation of existing equipment
on or adjacent to the communications site. If the Authorized Officer of the United
States Forest Service or authorized official of the Federal Communication
Commission (FCC) determines that the Sublessee’s use interferes with existing
equipment, the Sublessee will promptly take the necessary steps to eliminate or
reduce the harmful interference to the satisfaction of the Authorized Officer of the
United States Forest Service or FCC official;



21.

22,

c.

When requested by the Authorized Officer of the United States Forest Service, the
Sublessee will furnish technical information concerning the equipment located on the

property;
OTHER PROVISIONS.

The provisions of Paragraph “V. OTHER PROVISIONS” as contained in the Lease
between Macon County and the United States of America, acting through the Forest
Service, Department of Agriculture, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference, shall apply to the Sublessee named herein and Sublessee shall at all
times be bound by, subject to and comply with the same.

LIABILITIES.
The Sublessee assumes all risk of loss to the authorized improvements by Sublessee;

The Sublessee shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws,
reguiations, and standards, including but not limited to, the Federal Water Poliution
Control Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act,
42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq., the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Control, and
Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq., and other relevant environmental laws, as well
as public health and safety laws and other laws relating to the siting, construction,
operation and maintenance of any facility, improvement, or equipment on the
property made by Lessee or its agents hereunder;

The Lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold the United States harmless for any
violations incurred under any such laws and regulations or for judgments, claims, or
demands assessed against the United States in connection with the Sublessee's use or
occupancy of the property. The Sublessee’s indemnification of the United States shall
include any loss of personal injury, loss of life or damage to property in connection
with the occupancy or use of the property during the term of this Sublease.
Indemnification shall include, but is not limited to, the value of resources damaged
or destroyed; the costs of restoration, cleanup, or other mitigation; fire suppression or
other types of abatement costs; third party claims and judgments; and all
administrative, interest, and other legal costs. This paragraph shall survive the
termination or revocation of this lease, regardless of cause;

The United States Forest Service has no duty, either before or during this Sublease
term, to inspect the property or to warn of hazards and, if the United States Forest
Service inspects the property, it shall incur no additional duty nor any liability for
hazards not identified or discovered through such inspections. This paragraph shall
survive the termination or revocation of this lease, regardless of cause;

The Sublessee has an affirmative duty to protect from damage the land, property, and
interests of the United States;



23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

In the event of any breach of the sublease by the Sublessee, the Authorized Officer of
the United States Forest Service may, on reasonable notice cure the breach for the
account at the expense of the Sublessee. If the United States Forest Service at any
time pays any sum of money or does any act which will require payment of money,
or incurs any expense, including reasonable attorney's fees, in instituting, prosecuting,
and/or defending any action or proceeding to enforce the United States rights
hereunder, the sum or sums so paid by the United States, with all interests, costs and
damages shall, at the election of the Forest Service, be deemed to be additional rental
hereunder and shall be due from the Sublessee to the United States Forest Service on
the first day of the month foliowing such election;

COUNTERPARTS. This Sublease may be signed by any number of counterparts with the
same eftfect as if the signature of each such counterpart were upon the same instrument.

HEADINGS. The headings of the paragraphs of this Sublease are inserted as a matter of
convenience and for reference purposes only and in no way define, limit or describe the
scope of this Sublease or the intent of any paragraph hereof.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Sublease is the only Agreement between the parties hereto
and contains all of the terms and conditions agreed upon with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT. No amendment, change or modification of this
Sublease shall be effective unless in writing stating that it amends this document and signed
by each of the parties hereto.

GOVERNING LAW. This Sublease shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of North Carolina.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Sublease as of the day and vear first
above written.

SUBLESSOR: Macon County

By:

Derek Roland, Manager

SUBLESSEE: Sutton Radiocasting Corporation

By:




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

USE OF SPACE ON COMMUNICATIONS TOWER AND USE OF
ASSOCIATED TRANSMITTER BUILDING SUBLEASE AGREEMENT
AMENDMENT

This Use of Space on Communications Tower and Use of Associated Transmitter Building
Sublease Agreement Amendment is made and entered into thisthe  day of ,20
by and between Macon County, North Carolina, a North Carolina County and Body Politic
(hereinafter referred to as the “Sublessor™), and Blue Ridge Broadcasting Corporation, a North
Carolina non-profit corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Sublessee™).

THAT WHEREAS, Sublessee presently holds the Federal Communication Commission (FCC)
license for FM Translator Station W267AD (FCC Facility Identification Number 30442)
assigned to the community of Cherokee, North Carolina (hereinafier referred to as the “Station™);
and

WHEREAS, Sublessor presently has a Lease with the United States of America, acting through
the Forest Service, Department of Agriculture, for the Cowee Bald Communications site as shown
therein, a copy of said Lease is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as if more
fully set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, Sublessee desires to obtain from Sublessor, a use of space on communications tower
and use of associated transmitter building sublease agreement from the Sublessor which will
permit the location of the antenna and the use of the associated transmitter building for the Station
at Cowee Bald Communications site as referenced in the Lease above referenced; and

WHEREAS, Sublessor is willing to enter this Use of Space on Communications Tower and Use
of Associated Transmitter Building Sublease Agreement with Sublessee, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth hereinbelow.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms and conditions contained
herein, the parties hereto do agree as follows:



1.

SUBLEASEHOLD INTEREST. Sublessor sublets to Sublessee, and the Sublessee
subleases from Sublessor the following:

A.

Those sections of the Tower (which Tower is colored in yellow on the Cowee
Bald Communication Site Plan attached to the Lease Agreement referenced above)
which are not being used by either Macon County or Jackson County and which
are necessary for operation by Lessee's Station and such related equipment as is
required for the efficient and effective operation of the Station, and which are
specifically approved of by Sublessor and, to the extent necessary, which are
specifically approved of in writing by the United State of America, acting
through the Forest Service, Department of Agriculture. Such rights of use by
Sublessee shall be non- exclusive and shall in no way interfere with the broadcast
signals or other rights of existing users of the Cowee Bald Communications Site;

The non-exclusive right-of-way space on said Tower and non-exclusive right-of-
way space to and from the Transmitter Building (which Building is numbered
“1" and is colored in orange on the Cowee Bald Communication Site Plan
attached to the Lease Agreement referenced above) for the connection, and
passage by cables, wires and transmission lines and any transmission equipment
required for the operation of the Station. Such rights of use by Sublessee shall be
non-exclusive and shall inno way interfere with the broadcast signal or rights of
existing users of the Cowee Bald Communications Site;

The non-exclusive access to said Tower and said Transmitter Building for the
purpose of operating broadcast equipment owned or operated by Lessee located
there. Such rights of use by Sublessee shall be non-exclusive and shall in no way
interfere with the broadcast signal or other rights of existing users of the Cowee
Bald Communications Site;

Sublessor and Sublessee recognize and agree that the Cowee Bald
Communication Site is primarily an emergency communication site and as such,
Sublessor specifically reserves the right to cancel this Use of Space on
Communications Tower and Use of Associated Transmitter Building Sublease
Agreement, without liability, should it hereafter determine within its discretion
the need to do so in order to maintain and use the Cowee Bald Communication
Site as an emergency communicationssite. Sublessor reserves the ri ght to cancel
this Use of Space on Communications Tower and Use of Associated Transmitter
Building Sublease Agreement without liability should it determine within its
discretion that the use made or to be made by Sublessee interferes or will
interfere with the rights of existing users of the Cowee Bald Communications
Site;

If Sublessee does cause inference with the broadcast signal of existing users of
the Cowee Bald Communications Site, then Sublessor Lessee shall have the right
to immediately terminate this Use of Space on Communications Tower and Use



of Associated Transmitter Building Sublease Agreement;

F. Sublessee shall operate its Station in full compliance with all FCC Rules and
Regulations;

G. It is agreed and understood that Sublessee shall, at its sole cost, undertake a tower
study/engineering study prior making any significant changes to the site equipment such
as new antennae, new transnitters, etc. hereunder to determine if the same will interfere
with the broadcast signal of existing users of the Cowee Bald Communications
Site. The same must show that all planned use by Sublessee hereunder will not
interfere with the broadcast signal of existing users of the Cowee Bald
Comimunications Site. A copy of the same shall be delivered unto Sublessor upon
completion. All use by Sublessee hereunder must be in full compliance with FCC
Rules and Regulations, all other State and Federal Regulations, and approved by
the United States Forestry Service if such approval isnecessary;

TERM OF SUBLEASE. Upon all the terms and conditions of this Sublease, Sublessee
shall have and hold the non-exclusive rights provided for herein the period beginning January
1, 2023 at midnight until December 31, 2032 at 11:59 PM for a period of ten (10) years unless this
Sublease is sooner terminated as specifically hereinafter provided, unless this Sublease is
sooner terminated as specifically hereinafter provided. Priorto the end ofthe Term of this
Sublease, Sublessee shall cause all of its fixtures and property to be removed from the
subleased premises at its sole expense and shall cause any and all repairs that are
necessary to restore the subleased premises to the conditions which existed immediately
preceding the beginning of this sublease, reasonable wear and tear excepted;

RENT: Sublessee shall pay to Sublessor BASE RENT as follows:

A. BASE RENT: Sublessee’s base rent for each calendar year of this lease shall be as
follows:

2023  $307/month
2024 $316/month
2025  $326/month
2026  $335/month
2027 $346/month
2028 $356/month
2029  $367/month
2030  $378/month
2031  $38%/month
2032 $401/month



10.

4

ASSIGNMENT. The Sublessee shall have no right to assign this Sublease and its rights
under the Sublease to any affiliate or subsidiary of the Sublessee or subsequent owner of
Lessee's Station, without the consent of Sublessor and the United States of America, acting
through the Forest Service, Department of Agriculture;

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE. Sublessee shall be responsible for all maintenance
and repair of the Tower and the Tower supporting structures and the Transmitter Building
to be used hereunder by the Sublessee;

PAYMENT OF TAXES. Sublessee shall be responsible for the payment of any personal
property taxes imposed against the fixtures or equipment on the subleased premises
which are owned by Sublessee;

UTILITIES. Sublessor shall pay when due all electric and other utility charges made
against the subleased premises during the term of this sublease;

INSURANCE. Sublessor shall maintain adequate insurance coverage against fire, storm
or other casualty loss or damage to Sublessor's property, as well as liability insurance
against personal injury or property damage. Such insurance shall specifically provide for
coverage for the repair and replacement of all structures, machinery and equipment
owned by Sublessor located on or adjacent to, the Tower.

Sublessee shall maintain adequate insurance coverage against fire, storm or other casualty
loss or damage to Sublessee's property, as well as general liability insurance against
personal injury of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00). Evidence of said
insurance shall be provided to Sublessor upon request of Sublessor. Failure to maintain said
general liability policy by Sublessee shall result in the immediate termination of this
Lease;

DAMAGE TO OR DESTRUCTION OF THE TOWER. If the Tower subject to this
Sublease  or any part thereof, or any equipment thereon shall be wholly or materially
damaged or destroyed, at the sole option of the Sublessor, the Sublessor may repair, restore
and/or replace the same, at the expense of Sublessor, to the condition which existed
immediately prior to the occurrence of such casualty.

However, in the event the damage to the Tower subject to this Sublease or any part thereof,
or any equipment thereon, cannot be repaired within sixty (60) days (as reasonably
estimated by Sublessor as soon as practicable after the occurrence of such damage)
Sublessor may terminate this Lease as of the date of such damage;

EMINENT DOMAIN. If the Tower subject to this Sublease and/or the Transmitter
Building Parcel subleased hereunder shall be appropriated or taken under the power of
emninent domain by any public or quasi-public authority, this Sublease shall be
terminated as of the date of such taking and Sublessee shall thereupon be released from



11.

12,

any further liability hereunder. The date of such taking shali be the date on which legal
title shall vest in the condemning authority;

ACCESS TO LEASED PREMISES. It is mutually understood and agreed between the
parties that Macon County, Jackson County and Sublessee may maintain broadcast
apparatus on the Tower subject to this Sublease. Sublessor, Sublessee and all others
having the right to use such Tower shall have the right to non-exclusive access to such
Tower for the purpose of operating, maintaining, inspecting and repairing such broadcast
apparatus;

USE OF TOWER. Sublessee shall not take any action which will cause or permit electrical
interference to the broadcast signal of any existing electronic communications apparatus
on the Tower subject to this Sublease or otherwise interfere with the broadcast signal or
rights of any of the existing users of the Cowee Bald Communications Site. Sublessee
shall be liable to Sublessor and shall indemnify Sublessor for any loss or damage to
Sublessor’s equipment, or for destructive electrical interference to the communications
signals of Sublessor, consequential or otherwise, occasioned by, growing out of, or
arising from any act or failure to act by Sublessee, its agents or employees, including such
acts or failures to act which Lessee shall suffer to exist or continue to exist on the real
property of Sublessor or such Tower.

Any breach by Sublessee of Sublessor's right of use of the Tower as defined herein, shall
confer upon the Sublessor the right to immediately terminate this Sublease without
hability. Such rights shall be in addition to, and exclusive of such other rights contained
in this Sublease or such rights at law or equity which Sublessor may possess.

INDEMNIFICATION OF PARTIES. Sublessor shall have no liability for any loss or
damage due to personal injury, property damage, libel or slander, or electrical
interference, caused by Sublessee its agents, or employees, and Sublessee will indemnify
and save Sublessor harmless from any loss, damage or liability, consequential or
otherwise occasioned by, growing out of, or arising, or resulting in connection with,
Sublessee or any act or failure to act by Sublessee, its agents, or employees. Sublessee
shall have no liability for any loss or damage due to personal injury, property damage,
libel or slander, or electrical interference caused by Sublessor;

14. AUTHORIZATION. Sublessorand Sublessee respectively representand warrant to the other

15.

that all necessary approvals and/or corporate action has been duly taken to authorize the
executionand delivery of this Sublease and the performanceor observance of the provisions
of this Sublease. Additionally, Sublessor represents and warrants to the Sublessee that the
necessary consent and/or approval of this Sublease have been obtained from the United
States of America, acting through the Forest Service, Department of Agriculture, owner
of the real property in which such tower and transmitter building parcel are situate. Absence
of the landowner's consent and/or approval at any time during the Term shall grant the
Sublessor and the Sublessee the right to immediately terminate the Lease without further
liability;

NO WAIVER. Failure or delay on the part of either Sublessor or Sublessee to exercise any



16.

17.

18.

19,

right, power, or privilege hereunder shall not operate as a waiver thereof;

NOTICE. Any and all notices, demands or other communications required by this Lease
or by law, or desired to be given hereunder, by any party shall be in writing and shall be
validly given or made to another party if served either personally or if deposited in the
United States mail, certified, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. If such notice,
demand or other communication be given by mail, such shall be conclusively deemed
given as of the date shown on the return receipt if the same is deposited in the United
States mail addressed to the party to whom such notice, demand or other communication
is to be given as hereinafter set forth:

If to Lessor:

Macon County

Attention: County Manager

5 West Main Street Franklin, North Carolina 28734

Ifto Lessee:

Billy Graham Evangelistic Association
Attention: Justin T. Arnot, General Counsel
I Billy Graham Parkway

Charlotte, NC 28201

Any party hereto may change its address for the purpose of receiving notice, demands and
other communications as herein provided by a written notice given in the manner aforesaid
to the other party or parties hereto;

AGENTS AND PARTIES. From time to time Lessor or Lessee by notice as aforesaid may
appoint one or more agents to act for them;

ATTACHMENTS, SCHEDULES AND EXHIBITS. All Exhibits, Appendices and
Schedules attached to this Lease shall be deemed part of this Lease and incorporated herein,
where applicable, as if fully set forth herein.

THAT THE LEASE BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ACTING
THROUGH THE FOREST SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, AND
MACON COUNTY, AND THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS THEREOF, A COPY OF
SAID LEASE BEING ATTACHED HERETO ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN BY
REFERENCE AS IF MORE FULLY SET FORTH HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT THAT
ANY OF THE FOREGOING TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS USE OFSPACE
ON COMMUNICATIONS TOWER AND USE OF ASSOCIATED TRANSMITTER
BUILDING SUBLEASE AGREEMENT CONFLICT WITH OR ARE INCONSISTENT
WITH SAID LEASE AGREEMENT, THEN THE TERMS OF SAID LEASE
AGREEMENT SHALL PREVAIL, IT BEING THE SPECIFIC INTENT OF BOTH
PARTIES HERETO NOT TO SUBLEASE INCONSISTENTLY WITH SAID LEASE.



20.

ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SUBLESSEE.

All development, operation and maintenance by Sublessee of the authorized facility,
improvements, and equipment located on the property shall be in accordance with
stipulations in the communications site plan approved by the Authorized Officer of the
United States Forest Service. If required by Authorized Officer of the United States
Forest Service, all plans for development, layout, construction, or alteration of
improvements on the property, as well as revisions of such plans, must be prepared by
a licensed engineer, architect, and/or landscape architect. Such plans must be approved
in writing by the Authorized Officer of the United States Forest Service before
commencement of any work. After completion, as-built plans, maps, surveys, or other
similar information will be provided to the Authorized Officer of the United States
Forest Service and appended to the communications site plan;

The Sublessee will comply with applicable Federal, State, county, and municipal
laws, regulations and standards for public health and safety, environmental
protection, siting, construction, operation, and maintenance in exercising the rights
granted by this Sublease. The obligations of the Sublessee under this lease are not
contingent upon any duty of the Authorized Officer of the United States Forest
Service, or other agent of the United States, to inspect the premises. A failure by the
United States, or other governmental officials, to inspect is not a defense to
noncompliance with any of the terms or conditions of this lease. Sublessee waives all
defenses of laches or estoppel against the United States. The Sublessee shall at all
times keep the title of the United States to the property free and clear of all liens and
encumbrances;

Use of communications equipment is contingent upon the possession of a valid
Federal Communication Commission (FCC) or Director of Telecommunications
Management/Interdepartmental  Radio  Advisory Committee (DTM/IRAC)
authorization, and the operation of the equipment is in strict compliance with
applicable requirements of FCC or IRAC. A copy of each applicable license or
authorization shall at all times be maintained by the Sublessee for each transmitter
being operated. The Sublessee shall provide the Authorized Officer of the United
States Forest Service, and the Sublessor, when requested, with current copies of all
licenses for equipment in or on facilities covered by this lease;

The Sublessee shall ensure that equipment within its facility operates in a manner
which will not cause harmful interference with the operation of existing equipment
on or adjacent to the communications site. If the Authorized Officer of the United
States Forest Service or authorized official of the Federal Communication
Commission (FCC) determines that the Sublessee’s use interferes with existing
equipment, the Sublessee will promptly take the necessary steps to eliminate or
reduce the harmful interference to the satisfaction of the Authorized Officer of the
United States Forest Service or FCC official;



21.

22.

€.

When requested by the Authorized Officer of the United States Forest Service, the
Sublessee will furnish technical information concerning the equipment located on the

property;
OTHER PROVISIONS.

The provisions of Paragraph “V. OTHER PROVISIONS” as contained in the lease
between Macon County and the United States of America, acting through the Forest
Service, Department of Agriculture, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference, shall apply to the Sublessee named herein and Sublessee shall at all
times be bound by, subject to and comply with the same.

LIABILITIES.
The Sublessee assumes all risk of loss to the authorized improvements by Sublessee;

The Sublessee shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws,
regulations, and standards, including but not limited to, the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act,
42 U.5.C. 6901 et seq., the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Control, and
Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq., and other relevant environmental laws, as well
as public health and safety laws and other laws relating to the siting, construction,
operation and maintenance of any facility, improvement, or equipinent on the
property made by Lessee or its agents hereunder:

The Lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold the United States harmless for any
violations incurred under any such laws and regulations or for judgments, claims, or
demands assessed against the United States in connection with the Sublessee's use or
occupancy of the property. The Sublessee’s indemnification of the United States shall
include any loss of personal injury, loss of life or damage to property in connection
with the occupancy or use of the property during the term of this Sublease.
Indemnification shall include, but is not limited to, the value of resources damaged
or destroyed; the costs of restoration, cleanup, or other mitigation; fire suppression or
other types of abatement costs; third party claims and judgments; and all
administrative, interest, and other legal costs. This paragraph shall survive the
termination or revocation of this lease, regardless of cause;

The United States Forest Service has no duty, either before or during this Sublease
term, to inspect the property or to warn of hazards and, if the United States Forest
Service inspects the property, it shall incur no additional duty nor any liability for
hazards not identified or discovered through such inspections. This paragraph shall
survive the termination or revocation of this lease, regardless of cause;

The Sublessee has an affirmative duty to protect from damage the land, property, and
interests of the United States;



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

In the event of any breach of the sublease by the Sublessee, the Authorized Officer of
the United States Forest Service may, on reasonable notice cure the breach for the
account at the expense of the Sublessee. If the United States Forest Service at any
time pays any sum of money or does any act which will require payment of money,
or incurs any expense, including reasonable attorney's fees, in instituting, prosecuting,
and/or defending any action or proceeding to enforce the United States rights
hereunder, the sum or sums so paid by the United States, with all interests, costs and
damages shall, at the election of the Forest Service, be deemed to be additional rental
hereunder and shall be due from the Sublessee to the United States Forest Service on
the first day of the month following such election;

COUNTERPARTS. This Sublease may be signed by any number of counterparts with the
same effect as if the signature of each such counterpart were upon the same instrument.

HEADINGS. The headings of the paragraphs of this Sublease are inserted as a matter of
convenience and for reference purposes only and in no way define, limit or describe the
scope of this Sublease or the intent of any paragraph hereof.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Sublease is the only Agreement between the parties hereto
and contains all of the terms and conditions agreed upon with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT. No amendment, change or modification of this
Sublease shall be effective unless in writing stating that it amends this document and signed
by each of the parties hereto.

GOVERNING LAW. This Sublease shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of North Carolina.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Sublease as of the day and year first
above written.

SUBLESSOR: Macon County

By:

Derek Roland, Manager

SUBLESSEE: Blue Ridge Broadcasting Corporation

By:




Auth 1D: NAN102 o FS-2700-10b {V,01/17)
Contact Name: MACON, COUNTY OF OMB No. 0596-0082
Expiration Date: 12/31/2041

Use Code: 815

U.S. DEFARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
'FOREST SERVICE
COMMUNICATIONS USE LEASE
AUTHORITY: .
Sectjon 501{a)(5) of the Federal Land Palicy and Management Act,
43 U,S.C, 1761(a){5)

MACON, COUNTY OF of 5 . MAIN ST. FRANKLIN, NC UNITED STATES 28734.

This iease is issued by the United States of Ammerlca, acting through the United States Department of Agriculture,
Forest Service {heréinafter the "United States" or "Forest Service"), as authorized by section 501(a){5) of the

‘Federal Land Policy and Management Act, 43 U,S.C. 1761(a)(5), to MACON, COUNTY OF, its agents, SUCEESSOrS,

and assigns (hereinafter the "lessee"),

The United States and the lesseé are jointly referred to in this lease as the "parties.” The term "authorized officer”
refers to the Forest Service official having the delegated authority to execute and administer this lease, Generally,

. unless otherwise indicated, this authority miay be exercised by the Forest Supervisor or District Ra nger of the

NATIONAL FORESTS IN NORTH CAROLINA in which the following described lands are focated.

The United States, in consideration of the terms and conditions in this lease and the payment to the United States
of rent in advance by the lessee, hereby Issues the lessee a Jease for the following described communications
facility in MACON ccunty of NORTH CAROLINA, (hereinafier called the “lease area”). The lessee accepts this lease
and possession of the lease area, subject toa ny valid existing rights, and agrees to use the lease area only for
construction, operation, maintenance, and termination of a communications facility. Authorized facilities under
this lease include:

Cowee Bald Communication Site:

Equipment shelters 10’ x 30’ concrete building ]
Antenna support structures 100’ Iaitice freestanding tower
' 70’ lattice freestanding tower
50’ pole
Ancillary improvements B kw gélnerator
1000 glton LP tank
|
i




The location of the lease area Is destribed or shown generally in the Cowee Bald Communication Site
Management Plan, which is attached as Appendix A of this lease. This and any other appendices are hereby
incorporated into this [ease.

Any additional appendices to this lease are incorporated into and made a part of this instrument as fully and
effectively as if they were set forth herein in their entirety.

" This lease is issued subject to the following terms and conditions.

i TENURE, RENEWAL AND TRANSFERABILITY

A. This lease shall terminate at one minute aftar midnight on 12/31/2041. Termination at the end of the lease
. term shall occur by operation of law anf.shali not require any additional notice or documentation by the
authorized officer, This lease is not.renewable, but the lessee has the right to request a new lease.

B. If the lessee desires a new lease upan termination of this lease, the lessee shall notify the authorized officer
accordingly, in writing. The notice must be received by the authorized officer at least one year prior to the end of
the lease term. The authorized officer shall determine if the use should continue and, if it is to continue, if a new
lease should be Issued to the lessee and under what conditions. The authorized officer shal! require payment of
any amounts owed the United States Under any Forest Service autharization before issuance of another
autharization.

C. This leaseis assignable with prior written approval of the authorized officer, except when rent has been
exempted or waived in whole or in part. Renting of space does not constitute an assignment under this clause.,

M. RENT

A. The lessee shall pay rent annually in advance as determined by the authorized officer in accordance with law,

‘regulation, and pelicy. The annual rent shall be adjusted by the authorized officer to reflect changes in fair market
value, annual adjustinents using the Cansumer Price Index-Urban (CPI-U}, changes in tenant occupancy, or phase-
in rent, if applicable. '

B. Rent is due at the close of business on January 1 of each year for which a payment is due. Payments in the form
of a check, draft, or money order are payable to USDA, Forest Service. If the due date for the rent falls on a non-
work day, the charges shall not apply until the close of business on the next workday. This lease shall terminate if
rent is not received by the Forest Service within 90 calendar days of the due date.

C. Pursuant to 31 U S.C, 3717 et seq., interest shall be charged on any rent not paid within 30 days from the date
the rental or rental calculation financial statement specified In this suthorization becomes due. The rate of
interest assessed shall be the higher of the rate of the current value of funds to the U.S. Treasury {i.e,, Treasury
tax and loan account rate), as prescribed and published by the Secretary of the Treasury in the Federal Register




.and the Treasury Fiscal Requirements Manual Bulietins annually or quarterly or at the Prompt Payment Act rate.
interest on the principal shall accrue from the date the rent is due. In addition, an administrative penalty at a
percentage rate prescribed by law or regulation will be assessed for failure to pay any portion of the debt that Is
more than 90 days past due. This paragraph shall survive the termination or revocation of this lease, regardless of _
cause.

D. Disputed rent is due and payable by the due date. No appeal of rent shall be considered by the Forest Service
without full payment of the disputed amount.

1ll. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE LESSEE

A. The lessee is authorized to rent space and provide other services to customers and tenants and shall charge
each customer and tenant a reasonable rent without discrimination for the use and occupancy of the facilities and
services provided. The lessee shall not impose unreasonable restrictions or restrictions restraining competition or
trade practices. By October 15 of each year, the lessee shail provide the authorized officer a certified statement
listing all tenants and customers by category of use in the authorized facilities on September 30 of that year,

B. All development, operation and maintenance of the authorized facilities, improvements, and equipment
located in the lease area shall be in accordance with stipulations in the applicable communications site
management plan approved by the authorized officer. If required by the authorized officer, all plans for
development, layout, construction, or alteration of improvements in the lease area, as well as revisions of those
plans, must be prepared by a licensed engineer, architect, andfor Iandscape architect. These plans must be
approved in writing by the authorized officer:before commencement of any work. After completion, as-built
plans, maps, surveys, or other stmilar, information shall be provided to the authorized officer and appended to the
communications site management plan.

C. The lessee shall comply with applicable federal, state, county, and municipal laws, regulations and standards

_ for public health and safety, environmental\protection, siting, construction, operation, and maintenance in
exercising the rights granted by this lease. The obligations of the lessee under this Jease are not contingent upon
any duty of the authorized officer or other agent of the United States to inspect the authorized facilities or lease
area, A fajlure by the United States or other govarnmental officials to inspect is not a defense to noncompliance
with any of the terms and conditions of this lease. The lessee waives all defenses of laches or estoppel against the
United States. The lessee shall at all times keep the title of the United States to the tease area free and clear of all
liens and encumbrances.

D. Use of communications equipment in the lease area is centingent upon possession of a valid Federal
Communication Commission {FCC) license or Director of Telecommunications Management/Interdepartmental
Radio Advisory Committee {DTM/IRAC) authorization and operation of the equipment in strict compliance with
applicable requirements of the FCC or IRAC. A copy of each applicable license or authorization shall at all times be
maintained by the lessee for each transmitter being operated. The lessee shall provide the authorized officer,
when requested, with current copies of all FCC licenses and DTM/IRAC authorizations for equipment in or on
facilities covered by this lease.




E. The lessee shall ensure that equipment within facilities authorized by this lease {including tenant and customer
equipment) operates in a manner that will not cause harmful interference with the operation of existing
equipment on or adjacent to the communications site coverad by this lease. If the authorized officer or
authorized official of the FCC determines that the lessee's use interferes with existing equipment, the lessee will
promptly take the necessary steps to eliminate or reduce the harmfui interference to the satisfaction of the
autharized officer or FCC official,

F. When requested by the authorized officer, the lassee shall furnish technical information concerning the
equipment located in the lease area.

IV, LIABILITIES
A. The lessee assumes all risk of loss to the autharized facilities and ancillary improvements,

B. The lessee shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and standards, including
but not limited to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.5.C. 1251 et seq., the Rasource Conservation and
Recovery Act, 42 U.5.C. 6301 et seq,, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability -
Act, 42 U.5.C. 9601 et seq., and other relevant environmental laws, as well as public health and safety laws and
otherlaws relating to the siting, constructien, operation and maintenance of any facility, improvement, or
equipment in the lease area,

C. The lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the United States for any violations incurred under any
such laws and regulations or for judgments, clalms, or demands assessed against the United States in connection
with the lessee's use or occupancy of the lease area. The lessee's indemnification of the United States shall
include any loss of personal injury, loss of life or damage to property in connection with the occupancyor use of -
the lezse area during the term of this leasesIndemnification shall include but not be limited to the value of
resources damaged or destroyed; the costs of festoration, cleanup, or other mitigation; fire suppression or other
types of abatement costs; third-party claims ‘and judgments; and all administrative, interest, and other legal costs,
 This clause shall survive-the terminatian or revocation of this lease, regardless of cause,

"D. The Forest Service has no duty, either before or during the lease term, to inspect the lease area or to warn of
hazards and, if the Forest Service inspects the lease area, it shall incur no additional duty nor any liability for
hazards not identified or discovered through those inspections. This paragraph shall survive the termination or
revocation of this lease, regardless of cause.

E. The lessee has zn affirmative duty to protect from damage the land, property, and interests of the Unjted
States.

‘F. In the event of any hreach of the lease by the lesseq, the authorized officer may, on reasonable notice, cure the
breach at the expense of the lessee. If the Forest Service at any time pays any sum of money or does any act
which will require payment of money or incurs any expense, including reasonable attorney's fees, in instituting,
prosecuting, or defending any action or proceeding to enforce the United States' rights hereunder, the surns pald
by the United States, with all interests, costs, and damages, shall at the election of the Forest Service be deemed
to be additional rent under this lease and shall be due from the lessee to the Forest Service on the first day of the
month following that election,




V. MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

A. Nondiscrimination. The fessee and its employees shall not discriminate agairst any person on the basis of race,
color, sex (In educational and training programs), national origin, age, or disability or by curtailing or refusing to
furnish accommodations, facilities, services, or use privileges offered to the public generally, In addition, the
lessee and its employees shall comply with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended,
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as
amended, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended.

B. Revocation, Termination and Suspension

1. General. For purposes of this lease, termination, revocation, and suspension refer to the cessation of uses and
privileges under the lease,

"Revocation" refers to an action by the authorized officer to end the lease because of noncompliance with any of
the prescribed terms, abandonment, or for reasons in the public interest. Revocations are appealable. |

“Termination" refers to the cessation of the lease under its own terms without the necessity for any decision ar
action by the authorized officer, Termination occurs automatically when, by the terms of the lease, a fixed or
agreed upon condition, event, or time oceurs. For example, the lease terminates at expiration. Terminations are
not appealable.

"Suspension" refers to a revocation which is temporary and the privileges may be restored upon the occurrence
‘of prescribed actions or conditions. Suspensions are appealable.

2. This lease may be suspended or revoked upon breach of any of the conditions herein or upon nanuse. Nonuse
refers to a failure to operate the authorized facilities on the property for a period of 2 years. '

3. Except in emergencies, the authorized officer sha'l give the lessee writtan notice of the grounds for revocation
or suspension and a reasonable time, not to exceed 90 days, to camplete the corrective action. After 90 days, the
Forest Service is entitled to such remedies as provided herein,

4. This lease may be revoked at the discretion 6f the Forest Service when in the public interest. When revoked in
the publicinterest, the lessee shall be compensated subject to the availability of appropriated funds.
Compensation shall be based upon the initial cost of improvements located on the {ease, tess depreciation as
allocated over the life of the authorized facilities, based on the Lessee's federal tax amortization schedules,

5. Written decisions by the authorized officer relating to administration of this lease are subject to administrative
appeal pursuant to 36 CFR 214, '

6. If upon expiration of this lease the authorized officer decides not to issue anew lease, or the lessee does not
_desire a new lease, the authorized officer and the lessee shall, within six months prior to the termination date of
this lease, agree upon a mitigation plan to restore and stabilize the site lease area.




7. Upon termination or revocation of the authorization, delinquent fees and other charges associated with the
authorization will be subject to all rights and remedies afforded the United States pursuantto 31 U.S.C. 3711 et
seq. Delinguencies may be subject to any or all of the following conditions:

a. Administrative offset of payments due the lessee fram the Forest Service.

b. Delinguencies in excess of 60 days shall be referred to United States Department of the Treasury for
.appropriate collection action as provided by 31 U S.C. 3711(g)1).

c. The Secretary of the Treasury may offset an amount due the debtor for any definquency as provided by 31

. U.S.C. 3720 et seq.). If this lease is revoked for noncompliance, the lessee shall remove all authorized structures
and improvements, except those owned by the United States, within 90 days, and shall restore the site as nearly
as reasonably possible to its original condition unless this requirement is waived in writing by the authorized
officer.

If the lessee fails to remove all autherized structures or improvements within the prescribed period, they shall
become the property of the United States and may be sold, destroyed, or otherwise disposed of without any

liability to the United States,

C. No member of or delegate to Congress or resident commissioner shall benefit from this lease whether directly
or indirectly, other than'to the extent the lease provides a general benefit to a corporation,

D. This lease is issued subject to the following reservations by the United States:

L. The right of the United States to all natural resources now or hereaftar located in the lease area unless stated
otherwise, and the right to utilize or dispose of those resources insofar as the rights of the lessee are not
unreasonably affected.

2. The right of the United States to modify the communications site management plan as deemed necessary.

3. The right of the United States to enter the lease area and inspect all authorized facilities to ensure compliance
with the terms and canditions of this lease.

4. The right of the United States to require common use of the lease area and the right to authorize use of the
lease area for compatible uses.

E. The Forest Service and the lessee shall keep each ather informed of current mailing addresses.
F . This lease supersedes a special use authorization designated Macon, County of, WAY102812, March 3, 2002,

G. if there is any conflict between any of the preceding printed clauses and any of the following clauses the
preceding printed clauses shall control,




THIS LEASE IS GRANTED SUBJECT TO ALL ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

BEFORE ANY LEASE IS ISSUED TO AN ENTITY; DOCUMENTATION MUST BE PROVIDED TO THE AUTHORIZED
OFFICER OF THE AUTHORITY OF THE SIGNATORY FOR THE ENTITY TO BIND IT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS
OF THE LEASE.

W/W 125,21,

Derek Roland DATE
Manager, Macon County, NC

This instrument has been pre audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act.

@fM;@FQ/ 12, 15. 21

Lori Carpenter DATE

Finance Officer, Macon County, NC

T T T T T ——

APPROVED: '

M M S /#-z

M. rﬁo?’vﬁ?s@r/’ ™ DATE

District Ranger

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respondto a
collection of Information unless it displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is
0596-0082. The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average ane (1) hour per response, including the time
for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the
collection of Information.



The U.S. Department of Agriculture {USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national
origin, age, disability, and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic
Informatlon, political beliefs, reprisal, or bacause all or part of an individual's Income is derived from any public assistance. (Not all
prohibited bases apply to zlt programs.) Persons with disabllities who require alternative means for communication of program information
{Brallle, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Centar at 202-720-2600 (voice and TDD).

To file @ complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avanue, SW, Washington, DC 20250-
8410 or calt toll free {866) 632-9992 (volce). TDD users zan contact USBA through local relay or the Federal relay at (800) #77-8339 (TOD) or
{866) 377-8642 (relay voice). USDA Is an equal cpportunity provider and employer. .

The Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C, 552a) and the Freedam of Information Act {5 U.5.C. 552) govern the confidentiality to be provided for
information receivad by the Forest Service.



PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
Section 5311 (ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof.

This is to inform the public that a public hearing will be held on the proposed Macon County Community
Transportation Program Application to be submitted to the North Carolina Department of Transportation no later
than December 14th, 2022. The public hearing will be held on December 13, 2022 at 6:00 PM before the Macon
County Board of Commissioners.

Those interested in attending the public hearing and needing either auxiliary aids and services under the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or a language translator should contact Darlene Asher, Transit Director on
or before December 13th,, at telephone number 828-349-2222 or via email at dasher@maconnc.org.

The Community Transportation Program provides assistance to coordinate existing transportation programs
operating in Macon County as well as provides transportation options and services for the communities within
this service area. These services are currently provided using Light Transit Vehicles, Lift-equipped vans, and Mini
Vans. Services are rendered by Macon County Transit.

The total estimated amount requested for the period July 1, 2023 through Juie 30, 2024,

NOTE: Local share amount is subject to State funding availability.

Project Total Amount Local Share
I'roject 10tal Amount Local 2hare

2 Q,
Capital (Vehicles & § 674,302 $ 134,879 (20%)
Other)
TOTAL PROJECT $ 674,392 $ 134,897
Total Funding Request Total Local Share

This application may be inspected at Macon County Transit, 36 Pannell Ln,, Franklin, NC 28734 from 8:00 AM —
5:00 PM M-F. Written comments should be directed to Darlene Asher, Transit Director before December 13th, 2022,




PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM RESOLUTION

FY 2024 RESOLUTION
Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof.
Applicant seeking permission to apply for Public Transportation Program funding, enter into agreement with

the North Carolina Department of Transportation, provide the necessary assurances and the required local
match.

A motion was made by (Board Member’s Name) and seconded by (Board Mentber’s Name or N/A, if not
required) for the adoption of the following resolution, and upon being put to a vote was duly adopted.

WHEREAS, Article 2B of Chapter 136 of the North Carolina General Statutes and the Governor of
North Carolina have designated the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) as the
agency responsible for administering federal and state public transportation funds; and

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation will apply for a grant from the US
Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration and receives funds from the North
Carolina General Assembly to provide assistance for rural public transportation projects; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of these transportation funds is to provide grant monies to local agencies for
the provision of rural, small urban, and urban public transportation services consistent with the policy
requirements of each funding source for planning, community and agency involvement, service design
service alternatives, training and conference participation, reporting and other requirements (drug and
alcohol testing policy and program, disadvantaged business enterprise program, and fully allocated
costs analysis); and

4

WHEREAS, the funds applied for may be Administrative, Operating, Planning, or Capital funds and
will have different percentages of federal, state, and local funds.

WHEREAS, non-Community Transportation applicants may apply for funding for “purchase-of-
service” projects under the Capital Purchase of Service budget, Section 5310 program.

WHEREAS, (Legal Name of Applicant) _____ hereby assures and certifies that it will provide the
required local matching funds; that its staff has the technical capacity to implement and manage the
project(s), prepare required reports, obtain required training, attend meetings and conferences; and
agrees to comply with the federal and state statutes, regulations, executive orders, Section 5333 (b)
Warranty, and all administrative requirements related to the applications made to and grants received
from the Federal Transit Administration, as well as the provisions of Section 1001 of Title 18, U. S. C.

1 Revised 02-21-22



WHEREAS, the applicant has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to the
State of North Carolina required for the project;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the (Authorized Official’s Title)* _ of (Name of Applicant’s
Governing Body) is hereby authorized to submit grant application (s) for federal and state funding in
response to NCDOT’s calls for projects, make the necessary assurances and certifications and be
empowered to enter into an agreement with the NCDOT to provide rural, small urban, and urban public

transportation services.

I (Certifying Official’s Name)* (Certifying Official’s Title) do hereby certify that the above is a true
and correct copy of an excerpt from the minutes of a meeting of the (Name of Applicant’s Governing Board)
duly held on the day of .

Signature of Certifying Official

*Note that the authorized official, certifying official, and notary public should be three separate individuals.
Seal Subscribed and sworn to me A Notary el Here
(date)

Notary Public *

Printed Name and Address

My commission expires
(date)

P Revised 02-21-22



FY 2024 LOCAL SHARE CERTIFICATION FOR FUNDING
Macon County

Requested Funding Amounts

Project Total Amount Local Share**
5311 Administrative $ $ (15%)
5311 Operating (No State Match) $_ $_ (50%)
5310 Operating (No State Match) 5 $ (50%}
Combined Capital $ 674,392 $ 134,879 (20%)

Funding programs covered are 5311, 5310, 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities, 5307 (Small fixed
route, regional, and consolidated urban-rural systems)

TOTAL $674,392_ $ 134,879
Total Funding Requests Total Local Share

**NOTE: Applicants should be prepared for the entire Local Share amount in the event State
funding is not available.

The Local Share is available from the following sources:

Source of Funds Apply to Grant Amount
County General Funds Capital $134,879
TOTAL $ 134,879

** Fare box reveniie is not an applicable source for local share fundin
8

I, the undersigned representing Macon County do hereby certify to the North Carolina
Department of Transportation, that the required local funds for the FY2024 Community
Transportation Program and 5307 Governors Apportionment will be available as of July 1, 2023
which has a period of performance of July 1, 2023 — June 30, 2024.

Signature of Authorized Official

Derek C Roland, County Manager
Type Name and Title of Authorized Official

Date



36 Pannell Lane
Macon Counity Franklin, NC 28734
' "A N5 ' (828) 349-2222 (Phone)
: (828) 349-2570 (Fax)
We'll ﬁa,!(& yow %&' www.macontransit.com

12/08/22
To the Macon County Board of Commissioners,

Macon County Transit is applying for a Combined Capital Grant through NCDOT
IMD division. This grant is where systems can apply for funding for several capital
items. Including our vehicles, technology, facilities, and other equipment needed for
transportation systems. This grant is a 20% match, though some years the State of
NC will pay part of the match, but they always ask the system and the County to
budget for the whole 20%.

For FY24 Macon County Transit is asking for replacement vehicles that include five
(5) raised roof wheel chair vans, and one (1) 20° LTV wheel chair bus. The vehicles
that are being replace have reached their mileage threshold. They all had over
100,000 miles on them on June 30, 2022. Three of these vehicles were to be replaced
in FY21, but due to a shortage of vehicle production during COVID-19 pandemic
MCT was not able to procure these vehicles. Along with the purchase of vehicles we
are asking for the vehicles to be out fitted with Propane Kits and our lettering to be
installed on all vehicles.

MCT is also asking for a replacement lap top and overhead projector for training
MCT Operators, two (2) replacement desk top PC’s that have met the 5 year
replacement plan, Ten (10) Mobile Radio Units for vehicles purchased in FY23 and
FY24.

The cost to Macon County is $137,879, Federal amount is $539,513 for a total of
$674392.00

ﬂ/ o

Darlene Asher
Transit Director



MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

CATEGORY — REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS

MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 13, 2022

9A. Claire Chase with Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, will have a
PowerPoint presentation for the board highlighting the firm’s findings of the
county’s audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Hard copies of the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and the Compliance Letters will be
delivered to the board at the meeting,.

9B. At the request of the chairman, Board of Elections Director Melanie
Thibault will give the board members an overview of the November 8, 2022
general election.




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

CATEGORY - OLD BUSINESS

MEETING DATE: December 13, 2022

10(A). County Manager Derek Roland will provide an update on the
renovations at the Highlands Middle School.

10(B).  Jack Morgan will likewise provide an update on the Nantahala
Library/Community Center project.







Roland and Planning Director Joe Allen, along with data from the
projection, will be included in the packet for your information and review,
and he can provide additional details at the meeting,

12(C). Enclosed in the packet is the most recent billing guide for Macon
County Public Health. This guide, along with three appendices, was
approved by the Macon County Board of Health on November 15, 2022.
Public Health Director Kathy McGaha and Finance Officer Melissa Setzer
will be at the meeting to seek commission approval of the document(s) and
to provide any needed background. In years past, this item has gone under
the Consent Agenda for approval, but with new board members, it seemed
wise to offer an in-person review/explanation and the opportunity for board
members to ask questions. In addition to the billing guide is Appendix I
(MCPH Accepted Insurances and Governmental Payers), Appendix I
(Macon County Public Health Fee Schedule) and Appendix III (MCPH’s
Fee Setting Methodology).

[2(D).  Mrs. McGaha will also be seeking approval of a lease agreement
with the Community Care Clinic of Franklin, which would commence on
December 1, 2022 and run through June 30, 2023. County Attorney Eric

Ridenour has reviewed the lease, and he and Mrs. McGaha can field
questions at the meeting as needed.




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROY COOPER J. ERIC BOYETTE
GOVERNOR SECRETARY
Memorandum

To:  Derek Roland, Macon County Manager
Joe Allen, Macon County Planner
From: Amin Hezaveh, Transportation Planning Division
RE:  Southwestern RPO Travel Demand Model Socio-Economic Data Projection

Background

The Transportation Planning Division has initiated a pilot study to develop regional travel
demand models (TDM). Two regions (Southwestern RPO and Albemarle RPO County) have
been selected to partner in its development and assist and support rural communities and local
interests. The TDM is a long-range process that aims to study current travel behavior to predict
travel patterns in the future and assist decision-makers in making informed transportation
planning decisions. The strength of TDM is the ability to ask “what if”” questions about proposed
plans and policies and their effect on travel behavior.

Population

For this study, we selected 2021 as the Base year. Based on the historical trends in the Macon
County, Office of State Budget and Management (OSBM) recommended a 0.9% growth rate for
the 2020-2050 period which put the County population at 48,805 (more details in Table 1). The
OSBM also recommended a 1.1% average growth rate (AGR) for the state of North Carolina for
the same period.

Considering the unique characteristics of the mountain region, TPD recommends a 1% growth
rate for the SWRPO pilot study. Based on the TPD recommended growth rate 12,906 people will
be added to the Macon County population, and population will reach 50,008 by April 2050.
Table 2 and Figure 1 present both population trends and projected population in the future.

Employment

Employment information for Macon County was retrieved from the Data Axle (InfoUSA)
database. According to Data Axle, 19,688 employees worked in Macon County in 2021.
Countywide 2050 employment totals were based on maintaining the same population-
employment ratios as present in 2021, Based on this projection 6,848 employment will be added,
and Macon County employment will reach 26,536 by April 2050,

Request for Approval

NCDOT and the Southwestern RPO respectfully requests your official approval of projected
socio-economic data used to determine future deficiencies shown in the tables below. Your
approval can be documented as part of the official minutes of a regularly scheduled Board of
Commissioners.

Menling Address: Telephone: (91%9) 70709500 Location:
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Fax: (919) 733-5794 1 SOUTH WILNINGTON STREET
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING DIVISION Customer Service: 1-877-368-4963 RALLIGH, NC 27601

1554 MAIL SERVICE CENTER

RALEIGH, NC 27609-1534 IFehsite: nedol eov



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROY COOPER J. ERIC BOYETTE
GOVERNOR SECRETARY

SWRPO pilot Travel Demand Model

* TPD recommends a 1% growth rate for both population and employment in Macon
County for 2020-2050 period.

* Average North Carolina State population growth rate is 1.1%.

* Macon County's population will reach 50,008 by April 2050.

* Macon County's employment will reach 26,536 by April 2050,

Muiling Adidresy: Telephone: (919) 707-0900 Location:
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Fae (91917339794 I SOUTH WILMINGTON STREET
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING IIVISION Customer Service: 1-877-363-4968 RALEIGH, NC 27601

1534 MAIL SERVICE CENTER

RALEIGLL NC 27609-1554 Website: nedot.gov












2. Breast and Cervical Cancer Control Program (BCCCP)........veveeeeemeee s oo seeeeeeoeoeoeeeoeoeeeeoooeoeo 15
3o BRIl HEAIN. oot et 17
4. Communicable Disease CONTIOL.. ..ottt s oo 17
3. DENTAL SEIVICES .cvuiiiece ettt 18
6. Employee and Family HE@Ith ... 18
7. Family Planning or Women's Health SErVICE .......oc.ivieeoeireereeeee e e oo 15

8. immunization/IMmunization ACHON PIaN..........ceoouiiieeoeeerereeeee oo 21
G LADOTAIONY ittt ettt et ettt et 21
10 Maternal HEalth/Pren@tal............cuicriietiiiee ettt 22
11 PIIMENY CAE oottt ettt et b s sttt 22
12 5¢chool Based Health CENLEN. ..ot es et 23

B EGIDIITEY: oot ettt 23

€ FIMANCEI .ttt e ettt ee e 23

Qo SHAINE FEOL....ioeieeis ettt e eeeee oo 23
13, Sexually Transmitted DiSEase PreVENTION . ......cc.vueu. it eeerreteoseee s e oo 23
14, Sexually Transmitted DiSEASE DIUES .....cvierecueeireriieeeecerreeseceseeeeer s seeeee e seee e eee st oo 24
15, Tuberculosis (TB) CONIOL......cou ittt ee s oo 25
16. WISEWOIMAN L.t ettt e e et e et et e e eeoeee e 25
17, Workman's COMPENSAION .....covtuerieiiiisiee e e st tee e s e cees st eeees e 26
v Environmental HEalth SEIVICES ..........ccvieiiieiei ettt e 26
V. Women, Infant and Children’s NUtrition (WIC) SErVICES ......vvvirieeroereeeneeeeseesoeeeoeooeeooeeeoeoeeoo 27
APPENTIXES ..ottt ettt et b et er st ettt ettt ee et 27
I, Attachment — Appendix | - MCPH Accepted Insurances and Governmental Payers...ccooceecci i, 27
I Attachment — Appendix i — MCPH FEE PlaN.........ouuirereoeeosiieaeceeeeees e see oo 27
Il Attachment — Appendix Il = MCPH Fee Setting MethodolOgY.....coveeoveerrerivsosoes oo 27

pe. 3








































pg. 16

vi. Breast Services;

1.

At least 75% of all initial mammograms provided through NC BCCCP using
federal funds must be for women ages 50 to 64; no more than 25% may
be provided for symptomatic women under the age of 50.

Symptomatic women under the age of 50

a. NCBCCCP state funds or federal funds can be used to reimburse
for diagnostic services for symptomatic women under the age of
50.

b. Abnormal findings, including a discrete palpable mass, nipple
discharge, and skin or nipple changes, a woman can be provided a
diagnostic mammogram and a referral for a surgical consuitation.

Asymptomatic women ages 40 to 49

a. NC BCCCP state funds may be used to reimburse for
mammograms for women ages 40 to 49.

b. NC BCCCP federal funds may only be used for mammograms in
this population for women who are symptomatic, subject to the
25% limitation noted above.

Asymptomatic women under the age of 40

a. NCBCCCP state funds and federal funds can be used to screen
asymptomatic women under the age of 40, if they are considered
to be at high risk (see high risk defined below) for developing
breast cancer.

Asymptomatic or symptomatic women ages 65 to 75

a. NCBCCCP state funds may be used to reimburse for
mammograms for women ages 65 to 75 if no other source of
funding is available.

b. NC BCCCP federal funds may be used for symptomatic women in
this population.

All women should undergo a risk assessment to determine if they are at
high risk for developing breast cancer.

vii. Cervical Services:
1. Atleast 20% of all enrolled women screened for cervical cancer shall

meet the definition of never screened (greater than 10 years). The
priority age for cervical cancer screening is women between the ages of
21 and 64. All women should undergo a risk assessment to determine if
they are at high risk for developing cervical cancer.

Women diagnosed outside of NC BCCCP with breast and/or cervical
cancer and/or precancerous lesions with a diagnosis that is less than
three months prior to the date of BCCM application, and who meet NC
BCCCP eligibility criteria may receive Patient Navigation-only (PN-only)
services to apply for BCCM.













pg. 20

2. If a third party (including a government agency) is authorized or legally
obligated to pay for services, all reasonable efforts must be made to
obtain the third-party payment without application of any discounts.

3. Patients must not be charged at 100% if they do not have proof of
income at the time of service. The eligibility process should still be
completed for clients, and a sliding fee scale (SFS} discount of 0% up to
100% should be applied based on the clients verbal declaration of income
(recorded on the Self Declaration of Income form), income reported to
another Health Department program, or income documents provided
according to the current Family Planning (SFS).

4. If a patient refuses to provide any income information, including verbal
declaration of income (per current Title X guidelines):

d.

Assure the client that the income information is strictly used to
determine eligibility for sliding fee scale discounts on charges
incurred for services in the Family Planning clinic.

Assure the client that the information is not shared outside of the
Health Department. Offer the client the option to declare an
income range rather than a specific dollar amount.

Inform the client that income reported to other Health
Department programs may be used in lieu of the client’s
declaration of income; so if the client has reported income to
another Health Department program that reported income will be
used.

If no income has been reported for any other Health Department
program and the client continues to refuse to declare income,
inform the client that (s)he will be charged at 100% of the fee for
services rendered without any discount.

If the client state (s)he cannot pay 100% of the fee for services,
explain that eligibility for discounts is determined by income, and
offer the client another opportunity to declare income.
Document the conversation and outcome clearly and thoroughly
in the client’s record. It is recommended to have the client sign a
statement that (s}he declines to provide any declaration of
income and that (s}he understandings that (s)he will be charged at
100% because eligibility for discounts cannot be determined in
the absence of a declaration of income.

vii. If a client, including adolescents, is seeking “confidential services”, they will be
considered “confidential” and it will be documented on the Financial Eligibility
form. Charges to clients seeking confidential services will be based solely on the
individual’s income.




























Participating Governmental Payers

Macon County Public Health is in network and participates with the following Governmental payers to
provide dental services:

¢  NC Medicaid
¢ NC Health Choice



Macon County Public Health Fee Schedule Appendix Il

=
Code -g'-i Description
§ Current Fees
J0133 Doxycycline/Acyclovir 0.00
J0456 Azithromax 0.00
10561 Bicillin .25/unit
10696 Ceftriazone 2.50/unit
11050 Injection, Medroxyprogesterone Acetate, 150 MG {.34 per unit) 20.00
11100 Injection, Dexamethasone sodium phosphate 10.00
11725 17P Injection 21.00
11726 Makena 17P 850.00
12790 Rho (D) immune Globulin (Rhlg), full dose, 300mcg 134.00
13490 17-P used only for the treatment of advanced adenocarcinoma of the uterine corpu 850.00
17297 Liletta 50.00
17298 Mirena {replaces 17302} 350.00
17298 UD |Mirena IUD - Medicaid 311.00
17300 Intrauterine copper contraceptive device, Paragard T380A 250.00
17300 UD |Intrauterine copper contraceptive device, Paragard T380A 250.00
17301 Skyla IUD small frame 800.00
17301 UD [Skyla IUD small frame - Medicaid 376.00
17302 Levonorgestrel-releasing intrauterine contraceptive system, 52 mg (Mirena) 528.00
J7307 Nexplanon 500.00
17307 UD [Nexplanon 364.00
Q3014 TELE Psychiatry Origination Site Fee 21.00
Q9984 Kyleena IUD - hormone releasing 900.00
Q9984 UD [Kyleena IUD - hormone releasing - Medicaid 543.00
50030 Metronidazole 0.00
2000F BPV Measurement of ocular blood flow with interpretation 5.00
11200 Removal of skin tags, up to 15 lesions 70.00
11201 Removal of skin tags each additional 10 lesions 28.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag (unless listed elsewhere},
11400 trunk, arms, or legs; excised diameter 0.5 ¢cm or less 115.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag {unless listed elsewhere),
11401 trunk, arms, or legs; excised diameter 0.6 cm to 1.0 cm 135.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag {unless listed elsewhera),
11402 trunk, arms, or legs; excised diameter 1.1 cm to 2.0 cm 152.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag {unless listed elsewhere),
11403 trunk, arms, or legs; excised diameter 2.1 cmto 3.0 cm 176.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag (unless listed elsewhere),
11404 trunk, arms, or legs; excised diameter 3.1 cm to 4.0 cm 194.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag (unless listed elsewhere},
11406 trunk, arms, or legs; excised diameter over 4.0 232.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag {unless listed elsewhera),
11420 scalp, neck, hands, feet, genitalia; excised diametar 0.5 cm or less 110.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag {unless listed elsewhere),
11421 scalp, neck, hands, feet, genitalia; excised diameter 0.6 t0 1.0cm 142.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag {unless listed elsewheare),
scalp, neck, hands, feet, genitalia; excised diameter 1.1 em to 2.0 cm
11422 158.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag {unless listed elsewhere},
scalp, neck, hands, feet, genitalia; excised diameter 2.1 cmto 3.0cm
11423 192.00




Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag (unless listed elsewhere},
scalp, neck, hands, feet, genitalia; excised diameter 3.1 ¢cm to 4.0 cm

11424 218.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag (unless listed elsewhere),

11426 scalp, neck, hands, feet, genitalia; excised diameter over 4.0 cm 291.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag (unless listed elsewhere},
face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, mucous membrane; excised diameter 0.5 cm or less

11440 132.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag (unless listed elsewhere),
face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, mucous membrane; excised diameter 0.6 cm to 1.0

11441 cm 157.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag {unless listed elsewhere],
face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, mucous membrane; excised diameter 1.1 ¢cm to 2.0

11442 cm 174.00
Excisien, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag (unless listed elsewhere),
face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, mucous membrane; excised diameter 2.1 ¢cm to 3.0

11443 cm 219.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag {unless listed elsewhere),
face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, mucous membrane; excised diameter 3.1 ¢cm to 4.0

11444 cm 272.00
Excision, benign lesion including margins. Except skin tag (unless listed elsewhere),
face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, mucous membrane; excised diameter over 4.0 cm

11446 333.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of scalp, neck, axillac, external genitalia, trunk,

12001 and/or extremities (including hands and feet); 2.5 cm or less 147.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of scalp, neck, axillae, external genitalia, trunk,

12002 and/or extremities {including hands and feet); 2.6 cm to 7.5 cm 159,00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of scalp, nack, axillag, external genitalia, trunk,

12004 and/or extremities (including hands and feet); 7.6 ¢cm to 12.5 cm 184.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of scalp, neck, axillae, external genitalia, trunk,

12005 and/or extremities {including hands and feet); 12.6 cm to 20.0 em 228.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of scalp, neck, axillae, external genitalia, trunk,

12006 and/or extremities (including hands and feet}; 20.1 ¢cm t0 30.0 cm 293.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of scalp, neck, axillae, external genitalia, trunk,

12007 and/or extremities (including hands and feet); over 30.0 ¢m 331.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, and/or mucous

12011 membranes {including hands and feet); 2.5 cm or less 153.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, and/or mucous

12013 membranes {including hands and feet); 2.6 cm to 5.0 cm 171.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, and/or mucous

12014 membranes (including hands and feet); 5.1 cm to 7.5 ¢m 200.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of face, ears, evelids, nose, lips, and/or mucous

12015 membranes {including hands and feet); 7.6 cm to 12.5 cm 250.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, and/or mucous
membranes (including hands and feet}; 12.6 cm to 20.0 cm

12016 304.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, and/or mucous

12017 membranes {including hands and feet); 20.1 cm to 30.0 cm 394.00
Simple repair of superficial wounds of face, ears, eyelids, nose, lips, and/or mucous

12018 membranes (including hands and feet); over 30.0 cm 476.00

12020 Treatment of superficial wound dehiscence; simple closure 202.00

12021 Treatment of superficial wound dehiscence; with packing 148.00

11981 Nexplanon insertion 65.00

11982 Nexplanon removal 80.00




11983 Nexplanon removal with reinsertion 145.00

Destruction (eg, laser surgery, electrosurgery, cryosurger, chemosurgery, surgical

curettement), of benign lesians other than skin tags or cutaneous vascular
17110 proliferative lesions; up to 14 lesions 79.00
54050 Destroy Penis Lesion(s) - Simple Chemical 228.00
54065 Destruction Penis Lesion(s) - Extensive Cryosurgery 387.00
56501 TCA Vulva 229.00
56515 Destroy Vulva Lesion(s) - Complex 394.00
57170 Diaphragm fitting with instructions 91.00
57452 Colposcopy of the cervix including upper/adjacent vagina 191.00
57454 g;épéc;se(;siilo;r:eeﬂc;egr:x including upper/adjacent vagina w/biopsy of cervix or 269.00
57455 Colposcopy of cervix including upper/adjacent vagina wibiopsy of cervix 253.00
57456 Colposcopy of the cervix including upper/adjacent vagina w/endacervical curettage 239.00
58100 Eqdometrig1 sampling. (biopsy_) with or without endocervical sampling 109.00

(biopsy), without cervical diiation, any method (separate procedure)
58300 Ingert intrauterine device 132.00
58301 Removal of IUD 169.00
59025 Fetal Non-Stress Test 62.00
58425 Prenatal visits: 4 to 6 visits 1,000.00
50426 Prenatal visits: 7 or more visits 1,300.00
59430 After Delivery Care 121.00
69210 Remove impacted ear wax 86.00
86580 TB Test 6.00
856580P TB Test - Patient Pay 6.00
GQooo8s Administration Fee - Flu Shot (Medicare) 14.00
G0009 Administration Fee - Pneumonia Shot (Medicare) 14,00
G0O010 Administration Fee - Hep B (Medicare) 14.00
Q2038 Influenza vaccine quadrivalent 6-36 months 16.00
Q2037 Flu Virus Vaccine (Fluvirin) Medicare 16.00
Q2038 Flu Virus Vaccine (Fluzone) Medicare 16.00
2039 Flu Virus Vaccine (Unspecified) Medicare 18.00
90471 Vaccine Administration Fee 14.00
90472 Vaccineg Administration Fee-Each Additional 14.00

Immunization administration by intranasal or oral route; one vaccine {single or
90473 combination vaccine/toxoid) 20.00
00474 Each_ additiopal intranasal or oral route vaccine (single or combination

vaccineftoxaid) 20.00
90620 Meningococcal B (recombinant protein serogroup B, 2 dose) 188.00
90621 Meningococcal B (recombinant lipoprotein serogroup B 3 dose) 160.00
90632 Hep A - Adult 51.00
90633 Hep A - Pediatric 35.00
90636 Twinrix Vaccine 116.00
90645 Hib - child - HbOC 4 dose schedule 31.00
20646 Hib - Adult - booster only 31.00
90647 Hib - PRP_OMP 3 dose schedule 31.00
90648 Hib - child - PRP-T 4 dose schedule 59.00
90649 Gardasil {HPV) 190.00
90650 HPV bivalent 2vHPV (Cervarix) 137.00
90651 HPV @ 3 dose 249.00
50657 Ffu Shot (6-35 months) 11.00
50658 Flu Shot (3 yrs & >) 11.00
80660 Flumist - State Supplied
20662 Fluzone High Dose (65 & ») 59.00
90670 Prevnar 220.00




90672 Quadrivalent Flu Mist 40.00
90675 Rabies Vaccine - Exposure 352.00
90676 Rabies Vaccine - Preventive 352.00
90680 Rotateq 92.00
20681 Rotarix 115.00
90685 Influc_er)za virus vac_cine,quadrivalent, split virus, p_reservative free, when

administered to children 8-35 months of age, for intramuscular use 24.00
90686 Influnga virus \f_acgipe,quadriva!ent, split virus, preservgtive free, when

administered to individuals 3 years of age and older, for intramuscular use 23.00

Influenza virus vaccine,quadrivalent, split virus, when administered to children 6-35
90687 months of age, for inframuscular use 22.00

Influenza virus vaccine,quadrivalent, split virus, when administered to individuals 3
90688 years of age and older, for intramuscular use 22.00
90691 Typhoid Vaccine 116.00
90696 Kinrix - (DTaP-1PV) 59.00
90698 Penticil - (DTaP-IPV/Hib) 130.00
90700 DTAP 35.00
90702 DT - Diptheria Tetanus 58.00
90707 MMR §9.00
S0710 MMRV (Proquad) 246.00
90713 PV 40.00
80714 Td 39.00
90715 Tdap 43.00
90716 Varicella Vaccine 147.00
90717 Yellow Fever Vaccine 125.00
00723 Pediarix - {DTaP- HepB-IPV) 79.00
90732 Pneumonia Vaccine 118.00
90733 Meningococcal 118.00
90734 Menactra 135.00
90736 Zostavax (Shingles Vaccine) 230.00
90738 Japanese Encephalitis Vaccine 296.00
Q0744 Hep B - Pediatric 37.00
90746 Hep B - Adult 65.00
90750 Shingrix 167.00
92552 Hearing Test 39.00
92567 Tympancmetry 18.00
92587 Evoked otoacoustic emissions; limited (single stimulus level, either transient) 63.00
93000 EKG with Interpretation and Report 40.00
83010 EKG additional testing 30.00
95110 Developmental Screening 13.00
96127 Brief Emotional/Behavioral Assessment 7.00
85150 Health & Behavior Assessment, per 15 min, Initial 21.00
96151 Health & Behavior Assessment, per 15 min, re-assessment 20.00
96160 Administration of Patient-Focused Health Risk Assessment 6.00
86372 Therapeautic Injection 20.00

Behavior identification assessment, administered by a physician or other qualified

health care professional, each 15 minutes of the physician's or other qualified

health care professional’s time face-to-face with patient and/or
97151 . - C . P

guardian(s}/caregiver(s) administering assessments and discussing findings and

recommendations, and non-face-to-face analyzing past data, scaring/interpreting

the assessment, and preparing the report/treatment plan 100.00
97802 Medical nutrition therapy; initia! assessment and intervention, individual, 45.00
97803 Medical nutrition therapy; re-assessment and intervention, individual, 22.00
8B967 Telephone Education, 15 min/unit 0.00
98960 Individual Education, face to face 0.00




98961 Group Education, face to face 0.00
99080 Special reports such as insurance forms & complete physical forms 15.00
99172 Visual Acuity Screening Test - Color 5.00
99173 Visual Acuity Screening Test 5.00
99201 Office Visit (OV) new patient (pt) minor-phys time approx. 10 minutes 83.00
99202 OV new pt, mederate-phys time approx 20 minutes 124.00
99203 OV new pt, moderate-phys time approx 30 minutes 180.00
99204 OV new pt, complex-phys time approx 45 minutes 280.00
99205 OV new pt, severe-phys time approx 60 minutes 326.00
99211 }E‘)E\; established (estab) pt, minimal w/wo phys, time approx 5 min (inc limited specialty 43.00
99212 OV estab. pt, minor-phys time approx 10 min. (inc. Employment PE) 72.00
99213 OV estab. pt, moderate. phys time approx 15 min, {inc. DOT PE) 121.00
99214 QV estab. pt, severe, phys time approx 25 min. 209.00
99215 OV estab. pt, severe. phys time approx 40 min. 262.00
99381 New Patient (NP) physical exam: < 1 year 211.00
99382 NP physical exam: 1 to 4 Years 227.00
09383 NP physical exam; 5 to 11 years 226.00
99384 NP physical exam: 12 to 17 years 249,00
99385 NP physical exam: 18 to 39 years 242.00
99386 NP physical exam: 40 to 64 years 287.00
99387 NP physical exam: 65 years and over 310.00
G0438 Initial Visit Medicare Only Once in a lifetime 310.00
99391 Established Patient (EP) physical exam: < 1 year 200.00
99392 EP physical exam: 1 to 4 years 200.00
99393 EP physical exam: 5 through 11 years 200.00
99394 EP physical exam: 12 to 17 years 216.00
99395 EP physical exam: 18 to 39 years 217.00
99305 EP physical exam: 40 to 64 years 242.00
99397 EP physical exam; 65 years and older 250.00
G0439 Medicare Subsequent Annual Weliness Visit 250.00
99406 Tobacco Education (3-10 min) 13.00
99407 Tobacco Education over 10 min 25.00
99408 Substance Abuse 31.00
99409 Substance Abuse over 30 min 63.00
99420 Additional Assessments 9.00
99451 Consultant - 5 minutes or more without patient being present 36.00
99452 Consultant Treating Provider 16-30 min communicating & preparing referral 36.00
99492 Initial psychiatric collabroative care management first 70 minutes 131.00
99493 Subsequent psychiatric collaborative care management 60 minutes 105.00
98494 Collaborative care management, each additienal 30 mins in a month 55.00
99495 Transitional care management services/moderate 121.00
99496 Transitional care management services/high 209.00
99497 Advance care planning first 30 min 180.00
99498 Advance care planning additional 30 minutes 180.00
99499 Other Evaluation and Management Services {Replaced LU202) 25.00
99412 Preventive medicine, group counseling, appx 60 minutes 91.00
DENTAL
00120 Periodic oral evaluation 38.00
D0140 Limited oral evaluation - problem focused 66.00
D0145 Oral Evaluation, pt < 3yrs 48.00
D0150 Comprehensive oral evaluation - new or established patient 69.00
Do160 Detailed and extensive oral evaluation - problem focused, by report 100.00
Do170 Re-evaluation - limited, problem focused (established patient; not post-op) 44,00




00210 Intracral - complete series (including bitewings) 141.00
D0220 Intraoral -periapical first film 30.00
D0230 Intraoral - periapical each additional film 24,00
D0240 Intraoral - occlusal film 32.00
D250 Extraoral - first film 42.00
D0260 Extraoral - each additional film 35.00
D0270 Bitewing - single film 22.00
D0272 Bitewings - 2 films 36.00
D0273 Bitewings - 3 films 50.00
D0274 Bitewings - 4 films 63.00
D0330 Panoramic film 118.00
D1110 Prophylaxis - adult 81.00
D1120 Prophylaxis - child 56.00
D1201 Topical Fluoride w/ Prophylaxis 82.00
D1205 Topical Fluoride w/ Prophylaxis 82.00
D1206 ;;)t;inleﬁ‘lgfluonde varnish; therapeutic application for moderate to high caries risk 51.00
D1208 Topical application of flucride (prophylaxis not included) 35.00
D1351 Sealant - per tooth 44.00
D1510 Space maintainer - fixed - unilateral 283.00
D1515 Space maintainer - fixed - bilateral 395.00
D1555 Remove Fix Space Maintainer 51.00
02140 Amalgam - 1 surface, primary or permanent 95.00
D2150 Amalgam - 2 surfaces, primary or permanent 123.00
D2160 Amalgam - 3 surfaces, primary or permanent 149.00
D2161 Amalgam - 4 or mere surfaces, primary or permanent 181.00
D2330 Resin-based composite - 1 surface, anterior 118.00
D2331 Resin-based composite - 2 surfaces, anterior 150.00
D2332 Resin-based composite - 3 surfaces, anterior 184.00
D2335 Resin-based compasite - 4 or more surfaces or involving incisal angle (anterior) 217.00
D2336 Resin based composite - 1 surface pstr perm 138.00
D2391 Resin-based composite - 1 surface, posterior 138.00
D2392 Resin-based composite - 2 surfaces, posterior 180.00
D2393 Resin-based composite - 3 surfaces, posterior 223.00
D2384 Resin-based compaosite - 4 or more surfaces, posterior 275.00
D2751 Crown, non- precicus metal (porcelin) 1,000.00
D2910 Recement inlay/onlay or part 25.00
D2820 Recement Crown 28.00
D2930 Prefabricated stainless steel crown - primary tooth 223.00
D2940 Sedative filling 85.00
D2950 Core buildup, including any pins 194.00
D2951 Pin retention - per tooth, in addition to restoration 48.00
D3220 Therapeutic pulpotomy (excluding final restoration) 138.00
D3310 Root canal therapy - anterior (excluding final restoration) 572.00
03320 Root canal therapy - bicuspid (excluding final restoration} 700.00
D3330 Root canal therapy - molar (excluding final restoration) 869.00
D4211 Gingivectomy or gingivoplasty  to 3 contiguous teeth/quadrant 182.00
D4341 Pericdontal scaling and root planing 4 or more contiguous teeth 198.00
D4342 Pericdontal scaling and root planing 1 to 3 teeth/quadrant 188.00
D4355 Full mouth debridement to enable comprehensive evaluation and diagnosis 146.00
D410 Periodontal Maintenance 98.00
D5110 Complete Denture - Maxillary 1138.00
D5120 Complete Denture - Mandibular 1138.00
D5130 fmmediate Denture - Maxiilary 1234.00
D5140 Immediate Denture - Mandibular 1234.00




D5211 Maxillary Partial Denture - Resin Base 844.00
D5212 Mandibular Partial Denture - Resin Base 844.00
05213 Maxillary partial denture - cast metal framework resin base 1230.00
D5214 Mandibular Partial Denture - cast metal framewark resin base 1230.00
05410 Adjust Complete Denture Maxillary 62.00
D5411 Adjust Complete Denture Mandbular 62.00
D5421 Adjust Partial Denture Maxillary 62.00
D5422 Adjust Partial Denture Mandibular 62.00
D5510 Repair Broken Complete Denture 150.00
D5520 Replace Missing or Broken Tooth 128.00
D5610 Repair Resin Denture Base 150.00
D5640 Replace Broken Teeth 128.00
D5650 Add tooth to existing partial denture 156.00
D5660 Add clasp to existing partial denture 234.00
D5730 Reline Complete Maxillary Denture 264.00
D5731 Reline Complete Mandibular Denture 264.00
D5740 Reline Maxillary Partial Denture 258.00
D5741 Reline Mandibular Partial Denture 258.00
D6930 Recement bridge 88.00
D7111 Extraction, coronal remnants - deciduous tooth 92.00
D7140 Extraction, erupted tooth or exposed root 123.00
D7210 Surgical removal of erupted tooth 217.00
D7220 Remaoval of impacted tooth - soft tissue 271.00
D7230 Removal of impacted tooth - partially bony 354.00
D7240 Removal of impacted tooth - completely bony 424.00
D7250 Surgical removal of residual tooth roots (cutting procedure) 234.00
D7310 Alveoloplasty in conjunction with extractions - 4 or more tooth spaces, per quadrant 223.00
D7311 Alveoloplasty in conjunction with extractions 1 to 3 tooth spaces 180.00
D7320 qALIJ\;Zc;frﬂlasty not in conjunction with extractions - 4 ar more tooth spaces, per 364.00
D7321% Alveoloplasty notin conjunction with extractions - 1 to 3 tooth spaces, per quadrant 308.00
D7410 Excision of benign lesion up to 1.25 cm 177.56
D7510 Incision and drainage of abscess - intraoral soft tissue 241.00
D7530 Removal of foreign body from mucosa, skin, or subcutaneous tissue 250.00
DS110 Palliative {(emergency) treatment of dental pain - minor procedure §7.00
DS940 Occlusa! Bite Guard 400.00
LU401 Ml Paste 12.25
OTHER SERVICES
99499 Lice Treatment
59982 Copy of Medical Records {per sheet charge not to exceed $15.00) 0.25
99402 HIV Post-Test Results
T1001 TB Screening Form 10.00
838580 PPD given, high risk (State Supplied) 0.00
3510F PPD, positive result, contact
3510F PPD, negative result, contact
3510F PPD, positive result, low risk
3510F PPD, negative result, low risk
LU121 TB Directly Observed Therapy (DOT)
Lu122 TB Directly Observed Preventive Terapy (DOPT)
LU123 PPD, not read, contact
LuU124 PPD, not read, low risk
3510F PPD, positive result, high risk




3510F

PFD, negative result, high risk

3510F PPD, not read, high risk

LU265 Treatment of LTBI initiated, high risk

LU266 Treatment of LTBI, initiated, low risk

LU287 Treatment of LTBI, initiated, contact

LU268 Treatment of LTBI completed, high risk

LU269 Treatment of LTBI completed, low risk

LU270 Treatment of LTB! completed,contact

LU271 Treatment of LTBI incomplete

Luz272 Treatment of LTBI incomplete, low risk

LU273 Treatment of LTBI incomplete, contact

LU274 PPD given, contact
Miscellanecus Services (ex. Medical records payment fr isability Determinati

59581 shipping charZes) ( > tHem P ¥ =ton 15.00

LU402 Medicaid Co-Payment 3.00

G0431 Hair Drug Testing 100.00

HOC49 Expanded Hair Drug Testing 110.00

S0280 Medical home program, comprehensive care coordination and planning, Initial Plan 50.00

S0281 Med home prog, comp care coord and planning, main. of plan (postpartum) 150.00

T1002 RN Services 20.00

TH EDUCATION SERVICES

Go108 DSMT {Individual} 1/2 Hour Units 54.00

G0109 DSMT (Group) 1/2 Hour Units 19.00

G447 Face To Face Behavioral Counseling for Obesity, Individual, 15 min un 25.00

G0473 face To Face Behavioral Counseling for Qbesity, Group, 30 min un 25.00

04307 Diabetes Prevention Pragram 60.00

97802 MNT Individual/Initial {15 Min Units) 28.00

97803 MNT Re-Check/Individual {15 Min Units) 24.00

59465 Diabetic management program, dietician visit (BCBS) 35.00

59470 Nutritional counseling, dietician visit (BCBS) 35.00
Baby Think It Over 4 Classes 350.00
Body Fat Monitor & Calipers 10.00
Body Fat Testing by Calipers 7.00
Body Fat Testing by Monitor 5.00
BTIO Keys 6.00
Challenge Course 10.00
CPR Breathing Barriers 6.00
Adult 1st Aid / CPR 7 AED 90.00
CPR w/AED (Adult & Child) - ELIMINATED 0.00
Adult CPR/AED 70.00
Adult & Pediatric CPR/AED 90.00
Pediatric CPR/AED 70.00
CPR w/AED (Child) + Infant CPR + FAB - ELIMINATED 0.00
CPR w/AED {Adult & Child( + FAB - ELIMINATED 0.00
Adult & Pediatric 1st Aid/CPR/AED 110.00
First Aid-Basic 70.00
Healthy Heart Screening 35.50

S9445 Individual Heatth Education 20.00
Life Worksite Wellness (A) 40.00
Life Worksite Wellness (B) 37.50
Life Worksite Wellness {C) 35.00
Life Worksite Wellness (D) 32.50
Life Worksite Wellness (E) 30.00




Locking Clips 1.00
Face Shield 2.00
*Fees listed in this section are the most commonly ordered lab services at
Macon County Public Health. A full listing can be referenced by accessing the
LABORATORY "LabCorp Cost Schedule” document?A $20 fee will he addid to all Iag
services listed on the LahCorp document.

36415 ROUTINE VENIPUNCTURE 9.00
36416 CAPILLARY BLOOD DRAW 4.00
80048 BMP- METABOLIC PANEL TOTAL CA 27.00
80050 GENERAL HEALTH PANEL 74.00
80051 ELECTROLYTE PANEL _ 29.00
80053 CMP - COMPREHEN METABOLIC PANEL 24.00
80055 PRENATAL - OBSTETRIC PANEL 57.00
80061 LIPID PANEL 30.00
80069 RENAL FUNCTION PANEL 29.00
80074 HEPATITIS PANEL- ACUTE (A B,C) 46.00
80078 HEPATIC FUNCTION PANEL 27.00
G0431 DRUG SCREEN, QUALITATE/MULTI w/ confirmation (Replacas 80100) 50.00
80335 AMITRIPTYLINE (Replaces 80152) 43.00
80156 CARBAMAZEPINE, TOTAL- TEGRETOL 32.00
80157 TEGRETOL, FREE 70,00
80158 CYCLOSPORINE - BLOOD 43.00
80162 DIGOXIN 31.00
80164 VALPROIC ACID (DIPROPYLACETIC ACID) 30.00
80177 LEVETIRACETAM 38.00
80178 LITHIUM 31.00
80184 PHENOBARBITAL 39.00
80185 DILANTIN - PHENYTOIN, TOTAL 32.00
80188 PRIMIDCNE- MY SOLINE (W/PHENOR) 41.00
80195 SIROLIMUS(RAPAMUNE) BLOCD 49.00
80197 TACROLIMUS 82.00
80198 THEOPHYLLINE 38.00
80299 QUANTITATIVE ASSAY DRUG 137.00
80300 DRUG SCREEN, QUALITATE/MULT! w/ confirmation {Replaces 80100} 50.00
80301 DRUG SCREEN MULTICHANNEL PER DATE OF SERVICE (Replaces 80100) 50.00
80302 DRUG SCREEN SINGLE DRUG EACH PROCEDURE (Replaces 80100) 50.00
80303 DRUG SCREEN THIN LAYER CHROMATOGRAPHY (Replaces 80100) 50.00
80304 DRUG SCREEN NOT OTHERWISE SPECIFIED (Replaces 80100) 50.00
80320 DRUG SCREEN - ALCOHOL (Replaces 80101) 73.00
80335 ANTIDEPRESSANTS, TRICYCLIC AND OTHER CYCLICALS 1 OR 2 40.00
80336 ANTIDEPRESSANTS, TRICYCLIC AND OTHER CYCLICALS 3-5 40.00
80337 ANTIDEPRESSANTS, TRICYCLIC AND OTHER CYCLICALS; 6 OR MORE 40.00
81001 URINALYSIS, AUTO W/SCOPE" 22.00
81002 URINALYSIS NONAUTO W/O SCOPE (P&G) 16.00
81003 URINALYSIS, AUTO, W/O SCOPE" 17.00
81025 URINE PREGNANCY TEST 19.00
81220 CYSTIC FIBROSIS GENE ANALYSIS (CFTR) 130.00
81240 Prothrombin, coagulation factor 1) (eg, hereditary hypercoagulability} gene analysis 110.00

HLA Class ! typing, low resolution (eg, antigen equivalents}; one antigen equivalent
81374 (eg, B*27), each for Inflammatory Diseases, Cirrhosis, arthritis and inflammatory

bowel response 42.00
82024 ACTH 50.00
82040 ALBUMIN 29.00




82043 MICROALBUMIN / CREAT RATION - RANDOM URINE 34.00
82055 ALCOHOCL - BLOOD (ETHANQL) 40.00
82075 ALCOHOL- BREATH ETHANOL 50.00
82085 ALDOLASE 28.00
82088 ALDOSTERONE 45.00
82103 ALPHA-1-ANTITRYPSIN, TOTAL" 32.00
82104 ALPHA-1-ANTITRYPSIN, PHENOTYPE 45.00
82105 ALPHA-FETOPROTEIN, SERUM" 30.00
82131 AMINO ACIDS, SINGLE QUANT" 45.00
82140 AMMONIA 38.00
82150 AMYLASE 30.00
82157 ANDROSTENEDIONE 46.00
82164 ANGIOTENSIN | ENZYME TEST 31.00
82175 ARSENIC 60.00
82232 BETA-2 MICROGLOBULIN SERUM 41.00
82239 BILE ACIDS, TOTAL 37.00
82247 BILIRUBIN, TOTAL" 29,00
82270 FECAL OCCULT BLOOD 25.00
82248 BILIRUBIN, DIRECT" 29.00
82274 FECAL OCCULT BLOOD,IMMUNOASSAY 50.00
82306 VITAMIN D 40.00
82308 CALCITONIN, SERUM 40.00
82310 CALCIUM 29.00
82330 CALCIUM- jonized 30.00
82340 CALCIUM IN URINE 31.00
82374 CARBON DIOXIDE-BLOQD 36.00
82375 CARBON MONOXIDE-BLOOD 38.00
82378 CEA-CARCINOEMBRYONIC ANTIGEN 33.00
82380 CAROTENE, BETA 37.00
82384 THREE CATECHOLAMINES 54.00
82390 CERULOPLASMIN 32.00
82435 CHLORIDE-BLOOD 29.00
82436 CHLORIDE- URINE 29.00
82465 CHOLESTEROL-BLD/SERUM 29.00
82491 CHROMOTOGRAPHY, QUANT, SING" 125,00
82495 CHROMIUM 50.00
82542 LAMOTRIGINE {LAMICTAL) SERUM 58.00
82507 CITRATE - urine 24 hour 45.00
82523 COLLAGEN CROSSLINKS 125.00
82530 CORTISOL, FREE - URINE 24 HOUR 37.00
82533 CORTISOL- TOTAL 31.00
82550 CPKTOTAL 25.00
82552 CPK ISOENZYMES 34.00
82553 CPK, MB FRACTION" 114.00
82565 CREATININE 25.00
82570 CREATININE- URINE 24 HOUR/RANDOM 30.00
82575 CREATININE CLEARANCE TEST 31.00
82595 CRYOGLOBULIN- semiquant, REFLEX 29.00
82607 VITAMIN B-12 30.00
82627 DEHYDRQEPIANDROSTERONE- DHEAS 37.00
82652 CALCITRIOL 38.00
82668 ERYTHROPOIETIN 32.00
82670 ESTRADIOL 47.00
82672 ESTROGEN 45.00







83912 GENETIC EXAMINATION 26.00
83914 MUTATION ID CLAYSBCE/ASFPE 26.00
83921 ORGANIC ACID, SINGLE, QUANT" 125.00
83930 OSMOLALITY- BLOCGD 31.00
83935 OSMOLALITY- URINE 31.00
83945 OXALATE -24 HR URINE 36.00
83570 PTH- PARATHYROID HORMONE-INTACT 31.00
83986 BODY FLUID ACIDITY Nitrazine paper 9.00
84066 PROSTATE ACID PHOSPHATASE 32.00
84075 ALKALINE PHOSPHATASE 29.00
84100 PHOSPHORUS- INORGANIC -SERUM 24.00
84105 PHOSPHORUS- INORGANIC - URINE 25.00
84132 POTASSIUM- SERUM 29.00
84133 POTASSIUM- URINE 31.00
84134 PREALBUMIN 33.00
84144 PROGESTERONE 35.00
84148 PROLACTIN 33.00
84153 PSA, TOTAL 30.00
84154 PSA, FREE 33.00
84155 PROTEIN - TOTAL/REFLECT SERUM 24.00
84156 PROTEIN, URINE RANDOM ar 24 hour 29.00
84165 PROTEIN ELEC-PHORESIS, SERUM QUANT 30.00
84166 PROTEIN ELEC-PHORESIS/URINE/CSF 34.00
84207 VIT B6 - PLASMA 49.00
84244 RENIN 40.00
84295 SODIUM- SERUM 29.00
84300 SODIUM- URINE 24 HOUR 29.00
84305 SOMATOMEDIN 40.00
84402 TESTOSTERONE- FREE 52.00
84403 TESTOSTERONE- TOTAL 32.00
84425 VITAMIN B-1  THIAMINE 42.00
84436 T4- TOTAL THYROXINE 23.00
84439 T4- FREE THYROXINE 27.00
84443 TSH- THYRCID STiM HORMONE 24.00
84445 TSI-THYROID STIMULATING IMMUNG 77.00
84446 VITE -SERUM 37.00
84450 AST (SGOT) TRANSFERASE 29.00
84460 ALT (SGPT) ALANINE AMINO 29.00
844686 TRANSFERRIN 33.00
84478 TRIGLYCERIDES 29.00
84479 T3 or TAUPTAKE or THBR 28.00
84480 T3- TRIIODOTHYRONINE (T3) 32.00
84481 T3-FREE ASSAY (FT-3} 34.00
84482 T3- REVERSE 49,00
84484 TROPONIN, QUANT" 110.00
84520 BUN -UREA NITROGEN 29,00
84540 UREA NITROGEN -24 HR URINE 32.00
84550 URIC ACID- BLOCD 25.00
84560 URIC ACID- URINE 29.00
84585 VMA- URINE 24 HCUR 37.00
84590 VITAMIN A 40.00
84591 Vitamin B7 - Biatin 125.00
84597 VITK-1 200.00
84630 ZINC 30.00




84681 C-PEPTIDE 32.00
84702 HCG- QUANT SERUM 34.00
84703 HCG-QUAL SERUM 32.00
85002 BLEEDING TIME TEST 40.00
85004 WBC DIFFERENTIAL -AUTOMATED 27.00
85007 WBC DIFFERENTIAL- MANUAL bld smear 16.00
85014 HEMATOCRIT 18.00
85018 HEMOGLCBIN 18.00
85025 CBC W/AUTO DIFF WBC 26.00
85027 CBC COMPLETE (COMPONENT OF 80050) 24,00
85041 RBC COUNT AUTOMATED 31.00
85045 RETICULOCYTE COUNT AUTOMATED 29.00
85048 WBC-COUNT - BLOOD (LEUKOCYTE ) AUTOMATED 29.00
85049 PLATELET COUNT AUTOMATED 29.00
85060 BLOOD SMEAR INTERPRETATION 30.00
85220 FACTOR V ACTIVITY 95.00
85240 FACTOR VIII ACTIVITY 95.00
85250 FACTOR IX ACTIVITY 95.00
85300 ANTITHROMBIN Il TEST 51.00
85301 ANTITHROMBIN Ill ANTIGEN TEST 43.00
85302 PROTEIN C ANTIGEN 63.00
85303 PROTEIN C ACTIVITY 54,00
85305 PROTEIN S, TOTAL 61.00
85306 PROTEIN S FREE 61.00
85307 ACTIVATED PROTEIN C (ACP)} RESISTANCE 55.00
85379 FIBRIN DEGRADATION, QUANT" 45.00
85384 FIBRINOGEN 30.00
85610 PT/INR PROTHROMBIN TIME 28.00
85613 RUSSELL VIPER VENOM, DILUTED" 54.00
85651 SED RATE, NONAUTOMATED" 29.00
85652 SEDRATE (ESR) AUTOMATED 29.00
85660 SICKLE CELL TEST-RBC REDUCTION-refiex fraction. 100.00
85670 THROMBIN TIME PLASMA 44.00
85705 THROMBOPLASTIN INHIBITION 75.00
85730 PTT- THROMBOPLASTIN TIME, PARTIAL" 28.00
85732 THROMBOPLASTIN TIME, SUBSTITUTION EA 75.00
86003 ALLERGEN SPECIFIC IgE QUANTITATIVE OR SEMIQUANTITATIVE {24 units) 126.00
86005 ALLERGEN SPECIFIC IgE; MULTIALLERGEN SCREEN 24.00
86038 ANA- ANTINUCLEAR ANTIBODIES-DIRECT 30.00
86060 ANTISTREPTOLYSIN O, TITER" 29.00
86140 C-REACTIVE PROTEIN 30.00
86146 BETA 2 GLYCOPROTEIN 1 ANTIBODIES, IGG, IGM - Replaces 86142 32.00
86141 C-REACTIVE PROTEIN, HS - CARDIAC 31.00
86147 CARDIOLIPIN ANTIBOD, each class 37.00
86160 COMPLEMENT, ANTIGEN" 33.00
86162 COMPLEMENT, TOTAL {CH50)" 31.00
86200 CCP-CYCLIC CITRUL...PEPTIDE AB 45.00
86215 DNASE (DEOXYRIBONUCLEASE) ANTIBODY 42.00
86225 DNA ANTIBODY- NATIVE OR DOUBLE STRAND 32,00
86226 DNA ANTIBODY, SINGLE STRAND" 45,00
86235 NUCLEAR ANTIGEN ANTIBODY-EXTRACTABLE 34,00
86255 FLUORESCENT ANTIBODY, SCREEN" 35.00
86256 FLUORESCENT ANTIBODY, TITER" 35.00
86300 CA IMMUNOASSAY TUMOR, 38.00




86300 CA 27.29 -IMMUNOASSAY TUMOR, 36.00
86301 CA 18-9- MMUNOASSAY TUMOR, 35.00
86304 CA 125- MUNOASSAY TUMOR, 33.00
86308 MONQ- HETERQPHILE ANTIBODIES-QUALITATIVE 33.00
86334 IMMUNOFIX E-PHORESIS, SERUM" 27.00
86335 IMMUNFIX E-PHORSIS/URINE/CSF 51.00
86336 INHIBIN A 20.00
86340 INTRINSIC FACTOR ANTIBODY 36.00
86359 T CELLS; TOTAL COUNT 35.00
86360 CD4 / CD8, ABSOLUTE COUNT/RATIO" 73.00
86376 MICROSOMAL ANTIBODY 31.00
86382 RABIES TITER - NEUTRALIZATION TEST, VIRAL 70.00
86431 RA -RHEUMATOID FACTOR, QUANT" 30.00
86480 TB- INTERFERON GOLD TEST 69.00
86580 TB INTRADERMAL TEST 21.00
86592 RPR- BLOCD SEROLOGY, QUALITATIVE" 28.00
86593 RPR-TITER BLOOD SEROLOGY, QUANT 30.00(-
86611 BARTONELLA ANTIBODY CAT SCRATCH 50.00
86617 LYME DISEASE ANTIBODY-CONFIRMATORY WB 58.00
86618 LYME DISEASE IGM ANTIBODY 45.00
86632 CHLAMYDIA IGM ANTIBODY 40.00
86644 CMV ANTIBODY- IGG 31.00
86645 CMV ANTIBODY, IGM" 33.00
86663 EPSTEIN-BARR ANTIBODY-EA EARLY ANTIGEN 30.00
86664 EPSTEIN-BARR ANTIBODY-EBNA NUCLEAR AG 30.00
86665 EPSTEIN-BARR ANTIBODY-VIRAL CAPSID(VCA) 30.00
86677 HELICOBACTER PYLORI - IGG QUANT 39.00
86689 HTLVW/HIV WB CONFIRMATORY 70.00
86694 HERPES SIMPLEX TEST- TYPE 1 & 2 IGM 39.00
86695 HERPES SIMPLEX TYPE 1 I1GG 41.00
86696 HERPES SIMPLEX TYPE 2 44.00
86701 HIV-1 33.00
86703 HIV-1/HIV-2, SCREENING 32.00
86704 HEP B CORE ANTIBCDY, TOTAL" 32.00
86705 HEP B CORE ANTIBODY, IGM" 31.00
86706 HEP B SURFACE ANTIBODY- QUALITAtive 29.00
86707 HEP BE ANTIBODY 33.00
86708 HEP A ANTIBODY, TOTAL" 31.00
86709 HEP A ANTIBODY, IGM" 31.00
86735 MUMPS TITER - 1GG ANTIBODY 32.00
88747 PARVOVIRUS ANTIBODY-B19 IGG-IGM 66.00
86757 RICKETTSIA AB-ROCKY MTN SPOTTED FEVER 48.00
86762 RUBELLA ANTIBODY TITER 1GG 30.00
86765 RUBEQLA ANTIBODY TITER IGG 33.00
86777 TOXOPLASMA GONDII IGG ANTIBODY 34.00
86780 TP-PA SYPHILIS CONFIRM TEST 67.00
86787 VARICELLA-ZOSTER ANTIBODY TITER 34.00
86790 VIRUS ANTIBODY NCS 144.00
86800 THYROGLOBULIN ANTIBODY 34.00
86803 HEPATITIS C AB TEST 31.00
86803 Test Code 550362 - HEP C Reflex 135.00
86804 HEP C AB TEST, CONFIRM" 155.00
86850 ANTIBODY SCREEN- RBC 30.00
86870 ANTIBODY IDENTIFICATION- RBC 42.00




86880 COOMBS TEST, DIRECT" 36.00
86900 BLOOD TYPING, ABO" 30.00
86901 BLOOD TYPING, RH (D)" 38.00
87045 STOOL (FECES) CULTURE to State Lab 0.00
87070 CULTURE, BACTERIA, OTHER WITH PRESUMPTIVE ID 25.00
87071 CULTURE, BACTERIA, OTHER 25.00
87075 CULTURE ANAEROBIC BACTERIA, EXCEPT BLOOD" 88.00
87077 CULTURE AEROBIC ORGANISM IDENTIFICATICON 25.00
87081 CULTURE SCREEN ONLY 60.00
87086 URINE CULTURE/COLONY COUNT 26.00
87088 URINE BACTERIA CULTURE 22.00
87149 CULTURE IDENTIFICATION BY NEUCLEIC ACID 25.00
87168 MACROSCOPIC EXAM ARTHROPOD (nits-lice) 17.00
87172 PINWORM EXAM 15.00
87177 OVA AND PARASITES SMEARS-concentration 30.00
87186 SUSCEPTIBLE - MICROBE |, MIC" 39.00
87205 GRAM STAIN- SMEAR, 18.00
87207 SMEAR, SPECIAL STAIN" 119.00
87209 SMEAR, COMPLEX STAIN- richrome, iron etc 30.00
87210 WET MOUNT, SALINE/INK" 15.00
87230 C.DIFFICILE B TOXIN - (QUAL) 40.00
87324 CLOSTRIDIUM difficile toxin A and B, EIA 40.00
87338 HELICOBACTER PYLORI, STOOL ANITGEN, ElA 63.00
87340 HEPATITIS B SURFACE AG, EIA" 29.00
87350 HEPATITIS BE AG, EIA" 32.00

Infectious agent antigen detection by immuneassay technique, (eg, enzyme
87389 immunoassay [EIA], enzyme-linked immunosorbent assay [ELISA], 26.00

immunochemiluminometric assay [IMCA]) quatitative or semiquantitative, multiple-

step method; HIV-1 antigen(s}, with HIV-1 and HIV-2 antibodies, single result
87390 HIV-1 AG, EIA - STATE LAB 0.00
87425 ROTAVIRUS AG, EIA" 38.00
87490 CHLAMYDIA TRACH BY DNA PROBE 33.00
87491 CHLAMYDIA TRACH, DNA, TO State Lab 0.00
87491 CHLAMYDIA TRACH, DNA, LabCorp swab or ua 30.00
87496 CYTOMEGALOVIRUS AMPLIFIED PROBE TECHNIQUE 144.00
87517 HEPATITIS B, DNA, QUANT - PCR 262.00
87521 HEPATITIS C, RNA, AMP PROBE - QUAL 115.00
87522 HEPATITIS C, RNA, QUANTISURE (IU} 115.00
87590 N.GONORRHOEAE, DNA, DIR PROB" 33.00
87591 N.GONORRHOEAE, DNA, AMP PROB 30.00
87623 HPV, DNA, AMP PROBE" (Replaces 87621) 40.00
87624 PAP/HPV HIGH-RISK Test dependant $33,$80,$54
87625 Infectious agent detection by nucleic acid (DNA or RNA); Human Papillornavirus

(HPV), types 16 and 18 only, includes type 45, if performed 100.00
87798 ZIKA 670.00
87729 Infectious agent detection by nucleic acid (DNA or RNA}, not otherwise specified;

quantification, each organism 320.00
87804 RAPID FLU (59 MODIFIER FOR BOTH A AND B ENTER CODE TWICE) 30.00
87807 RSV a5
87880 STREP A ASSAY W/OPTIC 48.00
87902 HEPATITIS C GENOTYPE, DNA, " 228.00
88141 CYTOPATHOLOGY, CERVICAL OR VAGINAL 20.00
88142 CYTOPATHOLOGY, CERVICAL OR VAGINAL THIN PREP 37.00




88175 90 |PAP COLLECTION FEE 20.00
88305 Level IV Pathology Read $30/un
88342 Immunohistochemistry perspecimen, initial single antibody stain $110/un
Q0091 PAP COLLECTION FEE - Medicare 20.00
89055 WBC - STOOL 33.00
89321 SEMEN ANAL, SPERM DETECTION"-AMC 30.00
99000 HANDLING FEE 25.00
99070 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES-each container 7.50
G0328 HEMOCCULTS X 3 (MEDICARE) 18.00
Q0114 FERN TEST 20.00
99000 Handling Fee/ COC DRUG COLLECTION FEE 25.00
99000 Handling Fee / COC PATERNITY COLLECTION 2500
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
On-Site Waste Water (OSWW)
Improvement Permit {IP Only) 240-360 Gallons per day/2-3 Bedrooms 500.00
Authorization to Construct {AC Only) 240-360 Gallons per day/2-3 Bedrooms 500.00
Application fees for permitting a Pit Privy, Vault Privy, Incinerating Toilet or a
Composting Toilet 250.00
IP/AC 240-360 Gallons per day/2-3 Bedrooms 500.00
Improvement Permit (IP Only) 480-600 Gallons/4-5 Bedrooms 1,000.00
Authorization to Construct {AC Only) 480-600 Gallans per day/4-5 Bedrooms 1,000.00
IP/AC 480-600 Gallons per day/4-5 Bedrooms 1,000.00
Commercial Improvement Permit {IP) - also applies to residential over 6 bedrooms
& systems with 2 or more homes 1.65 per gal
Commercial Authorization to Construct {AC) also applies tc residential over 6
bedrooms & systems with 2 or more homes 1.65 per gal
Commercial IP/AC - also applies to residential over 6 bedrooms & systems with 2 or
more homes 1.65 per gal
RV Permit Only 0-120 Gallons per day 250.00
Addition to System (Per Bedroom) -0-120 Gallons per day- IP/AC/RV 250.00
Relocate Tank 225.00
Consultative Visit 125.00
Mobile Home Reconnect Site Visit 125.00
Additions to Structure 125.00
Return Visit Fee 125.00
Residential Repair Permit 0.00
Commercial Repair Permit .42 per gal
30% standard
***Engineer Option Permit (EOP) fee is 30% of standard fee fee
Private Drinking Water Wells (PDWW)
Private Drinking Water Well (PDWW) Permit 375.00
Consultative Visit 125.00
Return Site Visit 125.00
Abandonment of a Well {no charge if done in conjunction with a PDWW Permit} 0.00
Renewal of Permit befare Expiration (no changes in permit) 175.00
Well Repair 0.00

Water Test Fees/Sampling
All fees include a $5 charge for handling and processing of specimens {data entry,
packaging, tracking, courier costs and explanation/interpretation of test results).

Full Panel Inorganic Chemistry and Microbiology

New Private Water Well

79.00




Existing Private Water Well

79.00

Microbiology

Inorganic Chemistry and Microbiology 20.00
New Private Water Well 30.00
Existing Private Water Well 31.00

Inorganic Chemistry and Microbiology 50.00
New Private Water Well 34.00
Existing Private Water Well 35.00

Inorganic Chemistry and Microbiology 45.00
New Private Water Well 34.00
Existing Private Water Well 30.00

Inorganic Chemistry

Inorganic Panel - {Metals, Anions, Nitrate/ Nitrite) 73.00

Inorganic Panel - {Metals, Anions) 68.00

inorganic Pane! - (Coal Ash Testing) 73.00

Hexavalent Chromium 57.00

Metals Panel 64.00

Individual Metals - {1-3 maximum from above + Uranium) 50.00

Lead follow-up testing (up to 3 samples from same location) 70.00

Anions — (Fluoride, Chloride, Sulfate} 34.00

Disinfection By-Products — (Bromide, Bromate, Chiorite, Chlorate) 34.00

Fluaride — Physician, Dentist request 34.00

Nitrate/Nitrite 31.00

Arsenic speciation 34.00

Organic Chemistry

Pesticides

Chlorinated Pesticides 79.00
Nitrogen-Phosphorus Pesticides 79.00
eDB, DBCP and TCP 79.00

Herbicides

Glyphosate 79.00
Chlorinated Acid Herbicides 79.00
Carbamates 79.00
Synthetic Organic Chemicals (SOC) Scan 79.00

Petroleum products 79.00

Volatile Organic Chemicals {Sample collection must be performed by a Registered

EH Specialist. 129.00

FOOD AND LODGING

Food Service Establishment Plan Review - New/<24 seats 200.00

Food Service Establishment Plan Review - Existing/<24 seats 150.00

Food Service Establishment Pfan Review - New/>25 seats 200,00

Food Service Establishment Plan Review - Existing/>25seats 200.00

Food Stand Plan Review 100.00

Temporary Food Establishment Permit 75.00 per event

Tattoo Parlor Plan Review - New 200.00

Tattoo Parlor Plan Review - Existing 150.00

Tattoo Parlor Plan Review - Owner/Operator (annually) 700.00

Tattoo Parlor Permit - Each Additional Artist (annually} 500.00

Pool Plan Review 200.00

Pool Application Fee {annually) 100.00

Additional Poo! or Spa 50.00

ANIMAL SERVICES
Micrachipping for general public 15.00




Adoption - Cat

65.00

Adoption - Dog 65.00
Adoption - $pecial {(Animals spayed or neutered prior to entering shelter} 45.00
Adoption Fee for Veterans (Dog or Cat) 35.00
Reclaim Fee 25.00
Citation - Option 1 (at officer's discretion) 25.00
Citation - Option 2 (at officer's discretion) 50.00
Pet Carrier 5.00
Quarantine Fee {per day) 10.00
Sponsor Fee 65.00
Adoption - Special Event (Festival, Fair, Holiday approved event) - Cat 20.00
Adoption - Special Event (Festival, Fair, Holiday approved event) - Dog 30.00
Adoption - Overpopulation - Cat 10.00
Adoption - Overpopulation - Dog 20.00
Fee set by
Adoption - Sponsored Event - fee set by spansor sponsor
Boarding Fee (per day after notification) 10.00

Leash

1.00/un







NORTH CAROLINA LEASE AGREEMENT
MACON COUNTY

This lease is made the 1% day of December, 2022 by and between MACON COUNTY, a
body politic organized and existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter
called the “Lessor,” and COMMUNITY CARE CLINIC OF FRANKLIN, INC., a North Carolina non-
profit corporation with a principal office at 1830 Lakeside Drive, Franklin, North Carolina,
hereinafter called the “Lessee.”

WITNESSETH:

1. That subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the Lessor leases unto
the Lessee, and the Lessee accepts as a tenant, a portion of that certain office and clinic
space located within the Macon County Public Health Center’s Facility located at 1830
Lakeside Drive, Franklin, North Carolina. The portion of the premises which are leased
hereunder to Lessee consists of the two cubicles and the storage closet in hallway
across from waiting room D148 and the two room office suite off of waiting room B154
mutually agreed upon and presently and exclusively used by Lessee in the Macon
County Public Health Center’s Facility located at 1830 Lakeside Drive, Franklin, North
Carolina, together with the nonexclusive right to use in common with Lessor and its
assigns, the presently used hallway access to shared clinic waiting room D148, shared
waiting room B154, and parking for and access to the leased premises.

2. TERM. This lease shall commence December 1,2022 and end on June 30, 2023

3. PURPOSE. Lessee shall use the leased premises only to maintain an office in order to
provide a reduced-cost primary care medical clinic which shall be open to low income
persons for approximately 36 hours per week on a non-profit basis and in order to
further the public health interests of low income person and the interest of Macon
County in having reduced-cost primary care medical clinic available to low income
persons in Macon County.

4. RENTAL. The rent consideration for this Lease Agreement shall be $0.00 per month
payable by the tenth of each month and Lessee’s express promise to at all times during
the term of this Lease Agreement provide a reduced-cost primary care medical clinic



which shall be open to low income persons for approximately 36 hours per week on a
non-profit basis and in order to further the public health interests of low income
persons and the interest of Macon County in having reduced-cost primary care medical
clinic available to low income persons in Macon county. The monthly rental shall
include electric service, heat and water provided by the Lessor. Lessee shall provide any
other utilities and specifically its telephone and garbage disposal.

MAINTENANCE AND ALTERATION. Lessee agrees to accept the premises in their present
condition, to make all necessary repairs during the term of this lease and at termination
to surrender the premises to the Lessor in as good condition as they, now are, except
for ordinary wear and tear incident to the use of the premises. Lessee shall not alter the
premises in any way without the express written consent of Lessor.

INDEMNIFICATION. Lessee shall indemnify Lessor and hold it harmless from and against
any and all claims, actions, damages, liability and expense in connection with the loss of
life, personal injury, or damage to property occurring in or about, or arising out of, the
leased premises, or occasioned wholly or in part by and act or omission of Lessee, its
agents, licensees, concessionaires, customers or employees. In the event Lessor shall be
made a party to any litigation, commenced by or against Lessee, its agents, licensees,
concessionaires, customers or employees, then Lessee shall protect and hold Lessor
harmless and shall pay all costs, expenses and reasonable attorneys’ fee incurred or paid
by Lessor in connection with such litigation.

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. With respect to any pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, or
industrial, toxic or hazardous substance or material defined as such in, or for purposes
of, all applicable environmental laws, rules, regulations and ordinances now or hereafter
effect (“Environmental Laws”}), including without limitation, any waste constituents
coming with the definition or list of hazardous substances in 40 C.F.R. 261.1 through
261.33 (“Hazardous Material”}, the Lessee represents, warrants and covenants that it
will indemnify and hold Lessor harmless from and against any and all losses, liabilities,
damages, injuries, interest, deficiencies, fines, penalties, costs, expenses, attorneys’
fees, disbursements, and costs of investigation and clean-up, including without
limitation, claims, suits, and proceedings by federal, state, or local government
authorities with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result of {1} the presence on or
under, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission, discharging or
releasing from, the property of any Hazardous Material, if such occurs during the term
of the lease, (2) any other environmental pollution, including without limitation, any
contaminant waste, irritant or pollutant, discharged into or otherwise contained in the
environment at or adjacent to the property if such occurs during the term of the lease,
(3) non-compliance relating to the Lessee’s business or the property with any
Environmental Law or any other federal, state or local statute, law, ordinance, rule,




regulation, order or decree, or (4) the inaccuracy, misrepresentation or violation or
default of or under any matter set forth in this section unless any such loss, liability,
damage, injury or the like is directly caused by negligent acts of the Lessor. In addition,
the Lessee shall at all times keeps on file with Macon County Fire Marshall a list of any
of the materials, substances, or chemicals described in this paragraph and stored or kept
on the leased premises.

8. E-Verify, Each party hereto shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the
General Statutes. Further, if any party hereto utilizes a subcontractor, such party shall require
the subcontractor to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General
Statutes.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties have signed this lease in their respective corporate names
by their appropriate corporate officers and affixed their corporate seals on the date first written above
in duplicate originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties.

LESSOR:
Macon County

{OFFICIAL SEAL) By:

Paul Higdon
Chairman, Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Derek Reoland, Clerk to the Board

LESSEE:
Community Care Clinic of Franklin, Inc.

By:
ATTEST: Print Name: Tempe’ Fussell, Chair

Secretary

NORTH CAROLINA
MACON COUNTY



! , a Notary Public, for County, North Carolina,
do hereby certify that and personally appeared
before me this day and acknowledge that they are the of the Community Care
Clinic of Franklin, Inc. and the Secretary of the Community Care Clinic of Franklin, Inc., and that by
authority duly given and as the act of the Community Care Clinic of Franklin, Inc., the foregoing
instrument was signed by such of the Community Care Clinic of Franklin, Inc.,
sealed with its corporate seal and attested by such Secretary of the Community Care Clinic of Franklin,
Inc.

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the day of

Official Signature of Notary

Notary Public’s printed or typed name

My Commission expires:

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
MACON COUNTY

l, , @ Notary Public, for County, Nerth Caroling,
do hereby certify that Paul Higdon and Derek Roland, personally appeared before me this day and
acknowledge that they are the Chairman of the Macon Board of Commissioners and the Clerk to the
Macon County Board of Commissioners for Macon County, North Carolina, and that by authority duly
given and as the act of Macon County, North Carolina, the foregoing instrument was signed by such
Chairman of the Macon County Board of Commissioners, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by
such Clerk to the Macon County Board of Commissioners.

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the day of

Official Signature of Notary

Notary Public’s printed or typed name

My Commission expires:







Chapter 143 of the NCGS. Per Mr. Stahl, the Solid Waste Department has
finally come to an agreement with NCDOT regarding ingress/egress
requirements at the future Carson Convenience Center (Old Cartoogechaye
School) site, and he has asked McGill Associates to provide a scope of
services and contract for the permitting and construction of the required turn
lane on eastbound Highway 64 into the site. Mr. Stahl is requesting that the
board adopt the attached resolution exempting the provisions of Article 3D
of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina General Statutes and to authorize Mr.
Roland to execute the attached contract with McGill Associates so that we
may complete this phase of the center relocation project.

12(H). Mr. Stahl will also present the results and recommendation regarding
the Request for Qualifications for Engineering Services for the Solid Waste
Department. The Macon County Solid Waste Department has issued a
Request for Qualifications from engineering firms for services at the Macon
County MSW Landfill. The purpose of this request is in regard to the
remaining capacity (or lack thereof) at the landfill. The board has been
briefed previously on the drastic increase in the disposal rate since the
beginning of the Covid-19 pandemic and subsequent housing boom in
Macon County. Per regulation, the Macon County landfill has to provide an
annual update on the remaining landfill capacity each year to NCDEQ. In
2021, the survey and evaluation determined five (5) years of remaining
capacity in Phase III, Cell I. However, the capacity analysis conducted in
May of 2022 determined a remaining capacity of just over two (2) years.
There are several factors that contributed to the consumption of airspace;
none of which are a result of operational deficiencies of landfill staff; and
Mr. Stahl will be happy to discuss those with the board at your pleasure.
However, the impact of the current capacity status is such that the
department does not have time to develop the next Cell in Phase III before
capacity is exceeded. In seeking options for Macon County to provide
uninterrupted landfill services to our residents, Mr. Stahl spoke with Allen
Gaither, a Regional Engineer with NCDEQ SWS, regarding the feasibility of
retracting the notice of closure letter submitted for Phases 1 & 1l of the
Macon County MSW Landfill. As a result, a RFQ was developed for
engineering services to assist Macon County in obtaining a major
modification to our landfill permit, which includes re-opening of Phase II,
and applying for a vertical expansion based on 3:1 outer slopes rather than
the existing 4:1 outer slopes. Additionally, a vertical expansion will be
requested in Phase IIl, Cell 1. This expansion will basically allow the
department to overfill the slopes in the cell that will eventually be tied to




future landfill cells, essentially borrowing space that would eventually be
filled after additional cell development. It is estimated that these actions:
once permitted; will increase the existing capacity life from two (2) years to
approximately six (6) years. This not only grants us needed time for
additional cell development, but also allows us to repay the current landfill
debt service in full before there is any need to borrow funds for cell
construction. Finally, and if we can complete this process quickly enough,
we may be able to re-enter closure of Phases I & II and the same time we
contract for construction of Phase III, Cell II. This could potentially save
several hundred thousand dollars by transferring soil excavated from cell
construction directly to the closed phases for cap construction. It is
anticipated that these services will cost approximately $100,000.00 -
$150,000.00, which is about five to eight percent of the cost of constructing
four years of airspace in the landfill. Therefore, Mr. Stahl is requesting that
the board approve the recommendation of the Review Committee and
authorize him and Mr. Roland to negotiate and execute a contract with the
recommended consulting firm to begin the permitting process as soon as
possible; and, with the understanding that Finance Director Lori Carpenter
will pre-audit the contract verifying sufficient funds are available for the
project.




RESOLUTION EXEMPTING ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR GROUNDWATER
MONITORING AND REPORTING FOR THE SOLID WASTE
DEPARTMENT, MACON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, FROM THE PROVISIONS
OF ARTICLE 3D OF CHAPTER 143 OF THE NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL
STATUTES

WHEREAS, Article 3D of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina General Statutes
establishes a general public policy regarding procurement of engineering services; and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes Section 143-64.32 provides:

"Units of local government or the North Carolina Department of Transportation may in
writing exempt  particular projects from the provisions of this Article in the case of proposed projects
where an estimated professional fee is in an amount less than fifty thousand dollars
($50,000)"; and

WHEREAS, Macon County is now in need of engineering services for the groundwater
monitoring program in Macon County, Nerth Carolina; and

WHEREAS, the estimated professional engineering fee for these services in Macon County,
North Carolina is in an amount less than fifty thousand ($50,000) dollars.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF MACON that the proposed engineering services
for the Solid Waste Department Convenience Center site development is hereby exempted in writing
from the provisions of Article 3D of Chapter 143 of North Carolina General Statutes
pursuant to the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-64.32.

Adopted this 13" day of December, 2022.

Paul Higden, Chairman
Macon County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Clerk to the Board

(COUNTY SEAL)



[ | BUNNELL
| LAMMONS
R | | ENGINEERING

October 31, 2022

Macon County Solid Waste Management Deparirnent

109 Sierra Drive

Franklin, NC 28734

Attention: Mr. M. Chris Stahl
Director

Subject: Contract for a Corrective Action Evaluation Report (CAER)
Macon County Landfill

Permit #5703-MSWLF-1992
Franklin, North Carolina
BLE Contract No. J22-1101-29

Dear Mr. Stahl:

Bunnell-Lammons Engineering, Inc. (BLE) is pleased to submit this contract to Macon County to
provide consulting services associated with the Macon County MSW Landfill. This contract addresses
the requirement for corrective action evaluation reporting as set forth by the North Carolina Department
of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ), Division of Waste Management (DWM), Solid Waste Section
(SWS). Included herein is a brief description of the background project information, a general
description of our contract scope of services with related fee estimate, and authorization information.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Macon County owns and operates a recycling center and solid waste disposal facility at 1448 Lakeside
Drive in Franklin, North Carolina. The facility includes a Subtitle D municipal solid waste (MSW)
landfill, convenience center, waste treatment and processing facility, material recycling facility, and an
environmental education center.

The MSW facility includes a Phase 1 waste unit (6.6 acres), a Phase 2 waste unit (14.2 acres), and a
Phase 3 waste unit (22 acres). Phase 1 and Phase 2 are currently inactive waste units. Phase 3 is an
active waste unit with Cell 1 receiving waste.

Based on the historical detections of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) in two meonitoring wells
(MW-1A and MW-1B) which exceeded North Carolina groundwater standards promulgated under
NCAC Title 15A 021 .0202 (21. Standards), the SWS required the facility to initiate an assessment
rmonitoring program. The county was notified of the requirement in a SWS letter dated August 24,
2007.

5004 Ponders Cowt, Greenville, 5C 29616 { D64.268.1266 +5864.288.4430 % Info@blecorpcom

BLECORP.COM



Contract for CAER October 31, 2022
Maceon County MSW Landfill, Franklin, NC BLE Contract Numnber J22-1101-29

A limited CAT dated August 25, 2010 was prepared by BLE and approved by the SWS on November
10, 2010. The corrective action remedies approved in the CAP included:

1) Alterations to the grading of the Phase 1 Cell to prohibit or reduce the impoundment and
infiltration of stormwater,
2) Installation of a supplemental landfill gas cut-off trench and passive landfill gas vents

within the limits of the Phase 1 Cell to reduce groundwater impact from VOCs which may
be present in the landfill gas,

3) Continued semi-annual monitoring of selected sentinel monitoring wells for VOCs to
determine fate and transport of contaminants.

The existing groundwater monitoring network for the Macon County Landfill consists of three (3)
upgradient (background) wells (MW-10, MW-17, and MW-18) and eighteen (18) downgradient
(compliance) wells (MW-1A, MW-1B, MW-1D, MW-2, MW-3A, MW-5D, MW-14, MW-19, MW-
19A, MW-20, MW-21, MW-22, MW-22A, MW-23, MW-24, MW-25, MW-26, and MW-27). The
impacted wells/ assessment wells outlined in the CAP are MW-1A, MW-1B, MW-1T), MW-5D), and
MW-23. These wells are located west/ northwest of the Phase | and Phase 2 overlap area,

The CAP specifies that a CAER will be submitted to evaluate the site’s remedial progress on a 5-year
schedule. The CAER will contain an evaluation of the effectiveness of the approved remedies on a
periodic basis after the selected remedies are complete. The CAER will consist of a groundwater
contaminant trend evaluation report which will include site maps, plots of the contaminant trend data,
tables of results, a description of the evaluative process, and conclusions and recommendations,

The corrective action remedies were implemented in 2011 and the first CAER was submitted by REIC,
Inc. on February 17, 2017. Macon County has requested that BLE prepare this contract to evaluate the
remedial actions for data collected through October 2022 at the site and to prepare a CAFR for
submittal to the SWS.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The objective of this project is to evaluate the remedial progress at the facility and to prepare a CAER
as specified in the CAP and as required by the SWS. Please note that the general requirements for the
CAER are included in the SWS Guidelines for Corrective Action Evaluation Reports (undated
whitepaper). [Appendix A).

Current monitoring for cormrective action includes semi-annual monitoring of selected sentinel
monitoring wells for VOCs to determine fate and transport of contaminants. The selected wells are
MW-1A, MW.-1B, MW-1D, MW-5D, and MW-23. The CAER proposed herein will evaluate VOC
data through the October 2022 sampling event.

2of5



Contract for CAER October 31, 2022
Macon County MSW Landfill, Franklin, NC BLE Contract Number J22-1101-29

Contaminant Trend Evaluation

Historical trends in VOC concentration will be evaluated after a statistically significant sample set is
acquired. Typically, four data points (sampling events) are performed and a baseline report is issued
which documents the contaminants present, the range of detected concentrations, and establishes
general contaminant concentration trends. A minimum of 5 to 9 sampling events (statistical method
dependent) must be conducted for valid statistical analyses to be performed. A linear regression or
other approved statistical technique will be used to evaluate trends for each contaminant which has an
observed measurable concentration trend.

Petroleum Hydrocarbon Trend Evaluation

The degradation of petroleum hydrocarbons is a biclogically mediated oxidation/reduction (redox)
reaction. This process involves the transfer of electrons from a contaminant to an electron acceptor,
The net result of the process is the degradation of the contaminants to harmless end products such as
water, carbon dioxide, and metabolic byproducts, Since this process does not produce a measurable
daughter product (see the following section on chlorinated solvents) we propose that the degradation
of the hydrocarbon compounds should be evaluated by measuring the contaminant concentration frends
directly. A linear regression or other approved statistical technique will be used to evaluate trends for
each contaminant which has an observed measurable concentration trend.

Chlorinated Solvent Trend Evaluation
Dcgradation of chlorinated compounds is typically reflected in the historical trends where the

concentrations of parent compounds decrease while the concentrations of daughter products increase.
The two major transformation pathways are shown betow:

1. PCE = TCE - (isomers) DCE < Vinyl Chloride - Ethene > Ethane
2. 1,1,L1-TCA - 1,1-DCA - Chloroetbane - Ethane

We propose to prepare summary tables of the historical concentration data from each well and to
prepare plots of the historical VOC concentrations data for analysis. Where a significant VOC
detection history has been observed, we will prepare text to describe PCE and PCE daughter products
in the first paragraph followed by 1,1,I-TCA and 1,1,1-TCA daughter products in the second
paragraph. If a significant VOC detection history has not been observed, we will prepare only one
paragtaph for brevity. The detection history of ethene and ethane will be included if these compounds
are present in the site database.

Reporting

We will prepare a report which summarizes the data and provides our conclusions and
recommendations in accordance with the approved CAP. The report wilt be prepared in general
compliance with the CAER guidance in Appendix A but will be limited as described herein.

Jofs



Contract for CAER October 31, 2022
Macon County MSW Landfill, Frankiin, NC BLE Contract Number J22-1101-29

QUALITY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL MEASURES

As part of BLE’s quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) measures, documents are reviewed prior
to submittal to a client. Our QA/QC review is designed to provide accurate and concise reports, which
are in compliance with SWS. A Senior Hydrogeologist will perform the above scope of services.
Signatures of two professional geologists and/or engineers on submittals from BLE will indicate that
appropriate QA/QC has been performed for data reduction, analysis, and reporting.

FEE ESTIMATE
BLE will complete the scope of services outlined in this proposal for a lump sum fee of $10,800.
Invoices will be submitted on a monthly frequency or less and on a percent complete basis. The fee
estimate is effective for a period of six months from the date of this proposal.
SCHEDULE
Based on our present schedule, we can begin work on this project one week after we receive the October

2022 data and Macon County’s authorization to proceed. Our anticipated implementation schedule is
shown below:

Trend Analyses 4 weeks
Draft CAER 2 weeks
Review of Draft CAER by Macon County 2 weeks
Preparation and Submittal of Final CAER 1 week

Project completion 0 weeks

The final project deliverables can be prepared and submitted within approximately 9 weeks after receipt
of the dafa and signed authorization.

4of5



Contract for CAER October 31, 2022
Macon County MSW Landfill, Franklin, NC BLE Contract Number J22-1101-29

AUTHORIZATION

As our written authorization for the above scope of services, please execute the attached acceptance
sheet and return the acceptance copy of this contract to BLE,

Any exceptions to this contract or special requirements not covered in the contract should be attached to
the returned acceptance copy for the mutual consideration of both parties. Any Purchase Order issued
to authorize this project should reference this document (J22-1101-29).

We appreciate the opportunity to serve as your hydrogeological consultant at this site. If you have any
questions, please do not hesitate to contact us at (864) 288-1265.

Sincerely,
BUNNELL-LAMMONS ENGINEERING, INC.

Rﬁ G; ; Andrew W. Alexdnder, P.G., RSM

Staff Hydrogeologist Consulting Hydrogeologist

Attachments; Appendix A - Guidelines for Corrective Action Evaluation Reporis
Appendix B - Proposal Acceptance Sheet with Contract Terms and Conditions

50f5



APPENDIX A

GUIDELINES FOR CORRECTIVE ACTION EVALUATION REPORTS



Solid Waste Section
Guidelines for Corrective Action Evaluation
Reports

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WASTE MANAGEMENT

SOLID WASTE SECTION

Environmental Compliance Unit

The purpose of this document is to provide guidance as requested by the regulated community
regarding the content for Corrective Action Evaluation Reports.

Requirements

Corrective Action Evaluation Reports (CAERS) should be submitted on a periodic basis as specified in
the approved Comective Action Plan and Solid Waste Section guidance. CAERs should contain the
following information at a minimum:

1. Proof that a reduction in contaminant concentrations is occurring along specific transects

2. A demonstration that contaminant reduction is caused by chemical or biologic attenuation of
the contaminant(s) of concern. Include historical data for reference

3. Proof that the plume has stabilized or is decreasing within the horizontal and vertical extent
based upon the data

Report Format

The CAER should be submitted as a stand-alone technical document sealed by a North Carolina
professional and licensed geologist. The CAER should also be submitted electronically in a pdf or tiff
format. A paper copy is not required. There may be some site-specific instances where technical data
may require additional information beyond that listed in these instructions as a means of more fully
characterizing the technical data available and conclusions derived from that data. These instructions set
no limit on the number or content of such additional report sections as long as the information included
pertains to that required of a CAER.

The recommended format and content for a CAER is as follows:

Cover Page

Facility Name

Facility Location

Permit #

Consultant Name and Address

Permittee Name and Address

Report Date

Signature and seal of the NC certified licensed geologist,

VVVVVYY



Completed Environmental Monitoring Reporting Form - This page should contain the
signature and seal of the NC certified licensed geologist. Any work that would constitute the
“public practice of geology” as defined by G.S. 89E shall be performed under the responsible
charge of, and signed and sealed by, a geologist licensed in the state of North Carolina.

Table of Contents

Chapter 1 - Introduction (At a Minimum)
Site Background

Aquifer Characteristics

Contaminant Distribution

Description of Site Conceptual Model
Regulatory Status

VVVVY

Chapter 2 - Correction Action Summary (At a Minimum)

Physical Changes in Aquifer Conditions

Chemical Changes in Aquifer Conditions

Physical Changes in Plume Characteristics

Chemical Changes in the Plume

Refining the Site Conceptual Model

Evaluation of impacts on contaminant levels, hydraulic gradients, recovery well capture
zones, evaluation of the treatment train, contaminant removal efficiencies, total mass of
contaminants removed, etc,

Status of impacts at the relevant point of compliance (compliance boundary)

Any off-site migration of contaminants of concern

VVVVVY

A4

Chapter 3 - Conclusion

» Any modifications needed to the selected remedy

»  Any supplemental assessment or risk assessment activities to further characterize the
issues

> Does the contingency plan(s) need to be implemented

» Imposition of iand use restrictions on the facility property and/or on any buffer property
acquired to ensure that the migration of groundwater (and landfill gas) from the sanitary
landfill is confined to property owned and controlled by the responsible party.

References

Tables (At a Minimum)
¥ Groundwater elevation data
» Groundwater analytical data

Figures (At a Minimum)
» USGS 7 Y%-minute topographic map - showing the site location
»  Site Plan - to include topographic contours, permanent siructures, surface water features,
a bar scale, north arrow, facility boundary, waste management unit boundary, compliance
boundary, and all relevant monitoring wells or sampling points
Recent Potentiometric map
Graphs/Charts
Isoconcentration countour maps
Biochlor results

VVYVY



»

Cross scetions

Appendices (At a Minimum)

VV VVVvVYy

Boring logs for all Corrective Action monitoring program wells/borings

Sample Field Sampling Sheets

Sample Chain of Custody Records

Inventory and map of all wells, springs, and surface water intakes used as sources of
potable water within 1,500 feet from the edge of waste

Copies of field logs and notes, and color copies of site photographs

Laboratory reports for all samples collected and laboratory quality control samples,
including results for bias and precision and control limits used. The following minimum
laboratory quality control sample reporting is required: (a) at least one matrix spike and
one matrix spike duplicate per sainple delivery group or 14-day period, whichever is
more frequent (control limits must be specified); (b} at least one method blank per sample
delivery group or 12-hour period, whichever is less; and (c) system monitoring
compounds, surrogate recovery required by the method and laboratory control sample
analysis (acceptance criteria must be specified). All samples that exceed control
limits/acceptance criteria must be flagged in the laboratory report.



APPENDIX B

PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE SHEET WITH CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS



[ ] BUNNELL
B | LAMMONS
N - ENGINEERING

6004 Ponders Court Phone (864) 288-1265
Greenville, South Carolina 29615 Fax {(864) 288-4430

PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE SHEET

The purpese of this sheet is to obtain your written authorization for the performance of services by Bunnell-Lammons Engineering, Inc. (“BLE"} and
confirm the terms and conditions under which these services are provided as shown below.

Compensation for services rendered will be based on the schedules and/or sums described in this Agreement. If BLE is requested to modify the scope
of work at your request or if BLE personnel determine during the execution of the Work that a modification of scope is required, BLE will promptly
seek and confirm in writing a mutually agreeable revision of the scope of work and associated charges. All services and testing will be performed in
accordance with the standard of care set out below and applicable specifications, if any, unless otherwise noted. Test results apply only to the
materials tested,

Project Name and Proposal Number: Contract for a Corrective Action Evaluation Report

BLE Project No. J22-1101-29

Project Location; Macon County Landfill

Franklin, North Carolina

WORK AUTHORIZED BY:

Signature Date

Print Name ard Title - [f services and/or the provision of materials are to be perjormed for a corporation or company
thereinafier “company "} in which lAwe are an afficer, employee, director, member or shareholder, Iwe do hereby warrant
that I'we have the authority 1o bind the company.

Company Name

Address

City State Zip Code
PARTY RESPONSIBLE FOR SCHEDULING BLE’S SERVICES: Phone Number:

FOR PAYMENT OF CHARGES: (BLE should send invoices to)

Email Address:

Firm: Attention:
Address: City, State:

Zip Code: Phone Number: Fax Number:
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:

6004 Ponders Gourt, Greenville, SC 29615  { 864,288.1265 ¢21864.288,4430 2 info@blecorp.com

BLECORP.COM

1of4



BLIEE

[ ]

N -
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

WHEREAS, Client is secking engincering, consulting, testing and/or environmental or
other services in regard to services assaciated with a property or properties {the “project
site”) and/or services asscciated with a specilic activity or activities (the “services and/or
the “Work™). Therefore, in considoration of the mutual covenants and agreements
contained and the payments to be made as herein provided, Bunnefl-Lammons
Engineering, Inc., (hereinafter “BL.E") and Client (collectively, the "Parties*) agree as
follows (the "Agreement”).

1 SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED. DLE, through and by its officers,
employees and subcontractors, is an independent contractor and agrees to provide Client,
for its sole benefit and exclusive use, the services set forth in BLE's proposal, which is a
part of this Agreement. No third-party beneficiaries are intended by tis Agreement.

2. PAYMENT TERMS, Client agrees to pay BLE's invoice upon receipt. If
payment is ot received within 30 days from the Client’s receipt of invoice, Client agrecs
to pay a service charge on the past due amount at 1.5% per month, including atomey's fecs
and expenses if BLE's fee is collected through an stlorney. No deductions shall be made
from BLE’s invoice on account of liquidaled damages untess expressly included in this
Agreement. BLE may suspend services until paid on any project where payment of
invoiced amounts ot reasonably in dispute is not received by BLE within 60 days of
Client's receipt of BLE's invoice. BLE will issuc invoices monthly or more frequently as
reasonably required.

3 STANDARD OF CARE AND CERTIFICATIONS. BLE will perform its
services using that degree of care and skill ordinarily cxercised under similar conditions by
reputable members of BLE's profession practicing in the same or similar locality at the
time of service. NO OTHER WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING,
BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND/OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, IS MADE OR INTENDED BY BLE'S
PROPOSAL OR BY BLE'S ORAL OR WRITTEN REPORTS. Nothing in this
Agreement of in the services provided by BLE is intended to create, nor shall it be
construed fo create, a liduciary relationship owed by either party to one another. BLE shall
not be required to sign any documents, 0o matler by whom requested, that would result in
BLE having o certify, guarantee or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence
BLE cannot reasonably ascertain. Client shall not make resotution of any dispute with BLE
or paymem of any amount due to BLE in any way contingent upon signing any such
certification, guarantee, or warranty.

4. INSURANCE. BLE maiutains insurance coverage as follows:

a. Worker's Compeasation Insurance.

b. Employers Liability [nsurance.

¢. Commercial General Liability Insurance.

d. Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance.
Certilicates of Insurance can be provided upon acceptance of this Agreement and upon
request.

5, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CLIENT AND BLE HAVE EVALUATED
THE RISKS AND REWARDS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROJECT, INCLUDING
BLE’S FEE RELATIVE TO THE RISKS ASSUMED, AND AGREE TO ALLOCATE
CERTAIN OF THE ASSOCIATED RISKS. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED
BY LAW, FOR ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATION FROM BLE OF $10.00, RECELPT OF
WHICH 15 HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED, CLIENT AGREES THAT BLE'S LIABILITY,
AND THAT OF IS OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES,
AGENTS AND SUBCONTRACTORS TO CLIENT OR ANY ASSIGNEE SHALL BE
LIMITED TO AN AGGREGATE OF $50,000 OR BLE'S FEE, WHICHEVER IS
GREATER. IF CLIENT PREFERS TO HA VE HIGHER LIMITS OF LIABILITY, BLE
AGREES TO INCREASE THE AGGREGATE LIMIT UP TO A MAXIMUM OF
$1,000,000. (THE ADDITIONAL CHARGE FOR THE HIGHER LIABILITY LIMIT IS
BECAUSE OF THE GREATER RISK ASSUMED BY DLE AND IS NOT A CHARGE
FOR ADDITIONAL INSURANCE.) UPON CLIENT'S WRITTEN REQUEST AT THE
TIME OF ACCEPTING BLE’S PROPOSAL, PROVIDED CLIENT AGREES TO PAY
AN ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATION OF 5% OF BLE'S TOTAL CHARGES, OR
$500, WHICHEVER [S GREATER. THIS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY APPLIES TO
ALL LAWSUITS, CLAIMS OR ACTIONS, WHETHER [DENTIFIED AS ARISING TN:
() TORT, INCLUDING, BUT, NOT NECESSARILY LIMITED TO, NEGLIGENCE
(WHETHER SOLE OR CONCURRENT), PROFESSIONAL ERRORS OR
OMISSIONS, BREACH OF WARRANTY (EXPRESS OR IMPLIED) AND/OR
NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION, (II) STRICT LIABILITY, (Ill) CONTRACT,
OR (IV) ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION,
BLE'S INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS TO CLIENT RELATED TO THE SERYICES
PROVIDED IN THES AGREEMENT AND ANY CONTINUATION OR EXTENSION
OF BLE’S SERVICES. IN ADDITION, NEITHER CLIENT NOR BLE OR THEIR
SHAREHOLDERS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, AND
SUBCONTRACTORS SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR SPECIAL,

INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF TiUS
AGREEMENT OR OTHERWISE.
6. SITE OPERATIONS, APPROVALS, PERMITS AND FEES. BLE shall

obtain and pay for all permits, licenses, fees, and governmental approvals which may be
generally necessary for BLE to perform the type of services set out herein on a non-site-
specifie basis. However, Client shatt be responsible for acquiring all rights-of-entry to the

20f4

property and, if reasonably necessary, across the property of third parties so that BLE ean
perform the services. Client shall be solely responsible for acquiring required building
pemits, land disturbance permits or any other perm#t specific to the site and necessary for
BLE to perfomn its services.

BLE's field personnel ere trained o initiate ficld testing, drilling and/or sampling within a
reasonable distance of each designated location. BLE's field personnel will avoid hazards
or utilities which are visible to them at the site, If BLE is advised in writing of the presence
or potential presence of underground or above ground obstructions, such as utilities, BLT
will give special instwctions to BLE's field persannel. BLE is not responsible for any
damage or loss due to undisclosed or unknown surface or subsurface conditions owned by
Client or third parties, excepl to the extent such damage or loss is caused by BLE's
negligence.  Othenwise, for the additional consideration of $10.00, the reeeipt and
sufficiency being hereby acknowledged, Client agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold BLE
and its sharcholders, directors, officers, employees, agents and subcontractors harmless
from any such claims, suits or losses, {cotlectively “Claims") including related reasonable
aftormey's fees except to the extent such Claims are caused by BLE's negligence or witlful
misconduct

BLE will take reasonable precautions lo minimize damage to the project site or other
property caused by its operations. Unless otherwise stated in BLFE's proposal, BLE's
charges do not include cost of restoration due to any related damage which may result. If
Client requests BLE to repair such damage, BLE will do so for an additional fee.

Field tests or boring locations described in BLE's report or shown on sketches are based on
specific infermation fumished by others or estimates made in the field by BLE personnel.
Such dimensions, depths or elevations should be considered as approximations unless
otherwise stated in BLE's proposal or report. BLE's observations and sampling, inspection,
and testing procedures indicate conditions of materials and constniction activities only a1
the precise location where and precise lime when BLE performed the services. Client
acknowledges that conditions of matcrials and constmuction activities at other locations may
vary [fom thosc measured, ohserved, or inspected, and that conditions al one location and
time cannot be retied on 1o indicate the conditions at other focations and times, even when
the malerials involved appear to be identical, The cbservations and tests performed by
BLE's by field representelive are valid only for the time and location the test is performed.
Client acknowledges that outside factors such as construetion activity, weather and the
passage of ime can alter the condition of the material tested or observed. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, BLE may make inferences based upon the information derived from
performed procedures (o formulate professional opinions about conditions in ather areas.
BLE is responsible only for those data, interpretations, and recommendations about the
actual materials and construction activilies it observes, inspects, samples, or fests. Even if
perfarmed on a continugus basis, services do not and should not be interpreted to mean that
BLE observes, inspects, samples, or tests all materials on or at the project site. BLE is not
responsible for other parlies' intexpretations or use of the information BLE develops.

7. FIELD REPRESENTATIVE. The presence of BLE or its subcontractor's
field personnel, either full -time or pari-time, may be for the purpose of providing project
administration, assessment, observation, field testing of specific nspects of the project
and/or other services g5 authorized by Client. Should any party not retained by BLE be
involved in the project, Clicnt will advise such parly that BLE’s services do not include
supervision or direction of the means, methods or actual work of the other parly, its
employees or agents. Client will also inform the other party that the presence of BLF's
field representative at the project site will not relieve the other party of its responsibilities
for perfarming their work safely and Iewfully and in accordance with the standard of care
set oul herein and any spplicable plans and specifications.

Il & conlractor (not a subcontractor of BLE) is involved in the projeet, Client agrees, in
accordance willt generally accepted construction practices, that the contreetor will be solely
and completely responsible for working conditions on the job site /project site, in¢luding
security and safety of all persons and property during the performance of the work, and
comnpliance with all Client safety requirements and state and OSHA regulations. These
requirements will apply continuously and will not be limited to nonnal working hours.

I is agreed that BLE will not be responsible for job ar site safety or site security on or at
the project site, other than for BLE’s employees and subcantractors, and that BLE docs not
have the duty or right to stop the wark of the Client, its contractors or any third partics.

8. UNFORESEEN CONDITIONS OR OCCURRENCES. It is possible that
unforeseen conditions or occurrences may be encouniered at the site which could
substantially alter the necessary services or the risks invelved in completing BLE's
services. [f this occurs, BLE will prompily notify and consult with Client, but will act
based on BLE's sole judgmient where risk to BLE personne! is involved. Possible actions
eould include:

a. Complete the original Scope of Services in accordance with the procedures
originally intended in BLE's proposal,

b. Agree with Client to modify the Scope of Services end the estimale of
charges to include study of the unforeseen conditions or cccurrences, with such revision
agreed to in writing; or,

c. Terminale the services effective on the date specificd by BLE in writing.



BL.IE
[
L I ]
g SAMPLES, [NVESTIGATION DERIVED WASTE, DISPOSAL,
RETENTION., Test specimens or samples generally are consumed or substantially altered
during testing and any remnants arc disposed of immediately upon campletion of tests,
Mon-hazardous investigation derived waste, including but not limited to, samples, drill
cuttings, purge water and other wastes (“IDW") may be lell or used on-site or disposed of
by BLE for an additional charge at an appropriately licensed facility. With regand to ID'W
that contains asbestos, petroleun praducts, regulated substances and/or toxic or hazardous
substances or coostituents (“hazardous IDW"), Client will provide a secure temporary
storage location at or near the project site to prevent tampering with such containerized
hazardous IDW and BLE, in BL.E's sole discretion, either: 1) return the hazardous [DW to
Client for proper disposal or 2) using a manifest signed by Client or Client’s client as
generator and for an additional fee, have the hazardous [DW transported to an appropriate
location selected by Client for final disposal, of, (.3) otherwise safely dispose of the
hazardous [D'W, Client agrees to pay all costs associated with the storage, transporting and
disposal of hazerdous YW, Client recognizes and agrees that BLE is acting as a bailee and
at no time assumes title, constructive or expressed, to any hazardous or non-hazardous
IDW. If Client wishes BLE to retain any non-hazardous IDW, then, at Client’s written
request, BLE will use reasonable ¢fTorts to retain preservable IDW or the residue therefrom
but only for a mutually acceptable time and for an additional charge. BLE reserves the right
to refuse storage of any IDW. Client agrees that BLE is not responsible or liable for lass
of hazardous or nen-hazardous [DW retained in storage.

10. *CLIENT DISCLOSURE. Client agrecs to advise BLE upon execution of
this Agreemeot of any hazardous substance or any condition, known or thal reasonably
should be known by Client, existing in, on, or near the site that presents a potential danger
to human health, the environment, or BLE's equipment, Client agrees to provide BLE
continuing related information s it becomes available to the Client. By virtue of entering
into this Agreement or providing services hereunder, BLE does not assume control of or
responsibility as an operator or otherwise For the site or the person(s) in charge of the site,
or undeniake responsibility for reporting to any federal, state or local public agencies any
conditiens at the site that may present a polential danger lo public health, safety or the
environment. Clicnt agrees under advice of its counsel to notify the appropriate federal,
state or local public agencies as required by law; or otherwise to disclose, in a timely
manner, any information that may be necessary to preveot damage to human health, safety,
or lhe environment.

11. *ENYIRONMENTAL [NDEMNITY. In connection with ashestos,
petreleum  producls, repulated substances and/or toxic or hazardous substances or
constituents (collectively “toxic or hazardous subslences or constituents™ and to the
maximum extent pcrmitted by law and for separate and valuable consideration of $10,00,
the receipt and sufficiency being hereby acknowledged, Client aprees to defend, hold
harmuless and indemnify BLE from and against any and all claims, liabilities, or judgmments,
except to the extent finally detennined as being caused by BLE's negligence or willful
misconduct, resulting from:

a. Client's violation of any federal, state, or local slatute, regulation or
ortitance relating to the management or disposal of toxic or hazardous substances or
constituents,

b. Client's underlaking of or arrangement for the handling, removal,
treatment, storage, transperiation or disposal of toxic or hazardous substances or
constituents fourd or identificd at the site;

¢. Toxic or hazardous substances or constituents introduced at the site by
Client or third persons before, during or aller the completion of BLE's serviees;

d. Allegations that BLE is a handler, generator, operator, treater, storer,
transporter, of disposer under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Aet of 1976 as
amended or any other similar federal, state or local regulation or law due to the BLE's
services unless expressly retained by Client for such services; or,

e. Any third-parly suit or claim for damages against BLE alleging strict
liability, persenat injury (including death) or property damage from expasure 9 or release
of toxic or hazardous substances or constituents at or from the project site befors, during
or afler completion of BLE's services under this Agreement.

12 *EQUIPMENT CONTAMINATION. BLE will endeavor to clean its
laboratory and field equipment which may becomc contaminated in the copducl of BLE's
services. Occasionalfy, such equipment cannot be completely decontaminated because of
the type of hazards encountered. IF this occurs, it will be necessary to dispose of the
cquipment in a manner similar to that indicated for hazardous samples or waste and to
charge Client for the loss. Client agrees to pay the fair market value of any such equipment
and reasonable disposal costs.

13. DOCUMENTS. RLE wil} furnish Client the agreed upan number of writlen
reports and supporting documents. These instruments of services are fumished for Client's
exclusive internal use and reliance, use of Client's counsel, use of Client's qualified bidders
(design services only) and for regulatory submital in connection with the project or
services provided for in this Agrecment, but not for advertising or other type of distribution,
and are subject to the following:

a. Al documents generated by BLF under this Agreement shall remain the
sole property of BLE. Any unauthorized use or distnbution of BLE's work product shall
be at Client's and recipient's sole risk and without liabilily to BLE. BLE may retain
confidential Nile copics of its work product end documents or information it receives or
relies upon 5o BLE can support end/or defend its work.

b. IFClicnt desires to release, or for BLE to provide, BLE's repari(s) to a third
party not described abeve for that party's reliance, BLE will agree to such release provided

Jof4

BLE receives a written request from Client and a writien acceptance from such third party
to be baund by accepiable terms and conditions similar to this Agreement (e.g. Secondary
Client Agrecment). Reporls provided for disclosure of information only will not Tequire
separate agreement. Client acknowledges and agrees to inform such thivd partly that BLE's
repori(s) reflects conditions onty at the time of the study and may not reflect conditions at
a later ime. Client further acknowledges that such request for release creates a potential
conflict of interest for BLE and by making such a request, Client waives any such claim if
BLE complies with the request.

¢. Client agrees that all documents fumished to Client or Client's agents or
designees, if not paid for, will be retumed upon demand and will not be used by Client or
any other enlity for any purpese whatscever. Client further agrees Lhat documents
produced by BLE pursuant to this Agresment will not be used for any project not expressly
provided for in this Agrecment without BLE's prior written approval. BLE shall have no
liability for, and Client shatl indemnify, defend and hold BLE harmless for, any claim,
liability, damages or cosls arising out of any unauthorized reuse or modification of BLE’s
documents or other instruments of its service.

d. Client shall furnish documents or information reasonably within Client's
contro| and deemed necessary by BLE for proper pefformance of BLE's services. BLE
may rely upon Clisnt-provided documents in performing the services required under this
Agreement; however, BLE assumes no responsibility or liability for their accuracy. Client-
provided documents will remain the property of Client, but BLE may relain confidential
file copies to support its report.

e. Unless directed otherwise by Client, BLE shall provide its reports and other
required documentation via digital work product. Client agrees that 1he writieo or digital
copy retained by BLE in its files shall be the official base document. BLE makes no
warranty or representation to Client that the digital copy is rccurate or complete but wall
correct in good faith any omissions or errors brought to BLE's attention by Client. Any
modifications of such digital work product by Client shall be at Client's risk and without
lisbility to BLE, Such digital work product is subject 1o all other conditions of this
Agrecment.

14, SCHEDULING. Client acknowledges that Cléient, directly or indirecily
through its designee, has the sole right and sole responsibility to determine the extend,
frequency, and scheduling of observaticns, inspections, and/or testing performed by BLE,
Ctieot acknowledges thal BLE bears no responsibility for damages that may accrue because
BLE did not perform such observations, inspections, and/or testing that Chient or its
designee failed to request or schedule. BLE shall have no duty to inform Client, its
designee, or any other parly of any failure to schedule BLE's services.

Is, OPINIONS OF COST. If requesied, BLE will exercise reasonable efforts and
its experience on similar projects o provide realistic opinions or estimates of costs for
remediation or construction as appropriate based on reasonably available data, BLE's
designs or BLE's recommendations. However, such opinions are intended primarily to
provide information on the order of magnitude or scale of such costs and are not intended
for use in fim budgeling or negotiation untess specifically agreed otherwise, in writing
with BLE. Client understands actual costs of such work depend heavily on regional
economics, local consiiction practices, materal availability, site tondilions, weather
conditions, contractor skills, end many other factors beyond BLE's control.

16. TESTIMONY. Should BLE or any BLE employce be compelled by law 1o
provide (estimony or olher evidence by any parly, whether at deposition, hearing, or trial,
inrelation to serviees provided under this Agreement, and BLE is not a party in the dispute,
then BLE shall be compensated by Client for the associated reasonable expenses and labor
for BLE's preparations and teslimony al appropriate unit rates. To the exdent the party
compelting the testimony ultimately provides BLE such compensation, Client will receive
acredit or refund on Any related double payments to BLE.

17 GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by
the laws of the State of South Carlina without regard to its conflicts of laws provisions.
Causes of action anising out of BLE’s Services or this Agreement, regardless of cause(s)
or the theory of liability, including, but oot limited 10, negligence, indemnity or other theory
of recovery shall be deemed to have acerued, and Lhe applicable statute of limitations shall
commence to run, not later than the date of BLE's substantial completion of the Work.
Each party hereby submits te the jurisdiction and veaue of any court sitting in Greenville
County, South Carolina, for the adjudication of any dispute relating to or acising out of this
Agreement or the perfermance or nonperformance of a party’s obligations under this
Apreement. The parties hereto immevocably and unconditionally waive any objection 1o the
laying of venue of any such suit, action or proceeding brought in any such courl and waive
any claim that any such suit, action or proceediog brought in any such courl has been
brought in an inconvenient forurm.

i8. PRIORITY OVER FORM AGREEMENT/PURCIHASE ORDERS. The
Parties agree that the provisions of these terms and couditions shall control over and not be
superseded by any provisions of any other documents or writings and may be amended
only by writlen instrunent signed by both Client and BLE. Client may issuc purchase
orders to BLE to satisfy Client’s purchasing requirements. It is agreed that the terms and
conditions included in such purchase orders shall be considered deleted in their entirety
and such terms and conditions shall be void. Unless otherwise specitically stated by Client
in writing, Client’s request that BLE initiate services will conslitute Client's acceptance of
this Agreement and all of its ferms and conditions. Any additional or diffcrent terms that
Clicnt provides in any subsequeol acknowledginent, purchase order, task order, or other
document that vary from any of the terins hverein are hereby objected to and rejecied. Any



such terms proposed by Client, whether by offer or acceptance, shalt be void unless BLE
expressly agrees to them in writing.

19. CLAIMS. Except for claims for payment, prior to filing of any suit or arbitration, the
parlies agree to attempt to resolve any dispute without resorl to litigation or arbitration,
including using mediation. However, in the event any claim, including but eot limited to
claims for payment, results in litigation or arbitration, then the prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party the prevailing party’s reasonabte legal
[ees and cxpenses associated with such liligation or arbitration However, if the prevailing
party has had only a partial victory, then the court or arbitrator(s) shall make an allocation
based on the extent to which the court views the prevailing party as having prevailed,
EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL
RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY N ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED
HEREBY.

0. SURVIVAL. All provisions of this Agreement for payment, indemnity or
allocation of responsibility or liability between Client and BLE shall survive the
completion of the services and the termination of this Agreement.

21. SEVERADBILITY, In the event any provision of this Agreement is found to
be void or unenforceable under law, the court shall instead reform or replace any void or
uncnforceable provision with a valid end enforceable provision that gives meaning to the
intention of the provision or shall strike the provision from this Agreement. The remaining
provisions shall continae in full force and effect.

22, ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without
the prior written approval of the other.

23, CONSIDERATION. The parties agree that the charges for BL.E's services are
sulficiently adjusted to include any specific consideration payable to Client under these
terms and conditions.

24, INTEGRATION.  This Agreement, the atiached documents and those
incorporated herein constitute the entire Agreemcent betwean the parties and cannot be
changed except by a writien insmemcnt signed by both parttes.

25. TFORCE MAJEURE, Any failuze of performance under this Agrecment shall
not constitule breach if said failure of performance is due to an event or events beyond the
reasonable control of the Paries or either of them; such events of force majeure shall
include, but not be limiled to, acts of God, natural disasters, war and strkes, or
governmental orders including, but not limited to, orders affecting the work site or
regarding COVID-19 or any other epidemic, pandemic, or other declaration of public
health emergency.

If an ¢vent of force majeurc occurs, DLE shall notify Client, identify the event of force
majeure and specify the anticipated time when the Work can be continued. Timely
notification of an event of foree majcure shall extend the completion date of this Agreement
for a time equal to the continuation of the force majeure plus any reasonablc time necessary
to resume Work. Client agrees to pay BLE for all reasonable costs incwred associated
wilh tabor and equipment, including subcontractor services, necessary 1o resume Work.

26. CONFIDENTIALITY. BLE and Client recognize that each of thens may
encounter writlen ot unwritlen confideotial information regarding Lhe other Parly during
the course of the services set forth in the Proposal. Confidential infonnation means all
technical, economic, financial, pricing, marketing or other information that has not been
published end/or is not otherwise available to members of the public and includes, without
limitation, trade secrets, proprictary infermation, customer lists, scientific, technical and
business studies, analyses, processes, methods, procedures, policies and information. The
Party receiving such confidential information agrees to hold as confidential and not 1o
disclose such information.

Al drawings, specifications, technical documents of any nature, and copies thereof,
prepared pursuant to this Agreeinent shall be the propenty of BLE and are to be trealed as
confidential. They are not to be disclosed to others without BLE’s prior written approval,
BLE shall reat as confidential all documents and records (the "Documents”) belonging to
Client or a third party that BLE revicws during the performance of services set forth in the
Proposal. BLE sball not disclose the Documetits to any third party without the prior wrilten
consent of the Documents' owner or owners. No esticles, papers or trealises related ta or
in any way associated with the services set forth in the Proposal shall be submitied for
publication without BLE's prior written consent. BLE may relain copies of all such
documents for archival purposes and to support or defend its work.

The confidentiality restrictions herein shall not apply to information hat: (1) the Parties
had in their possession prior to disclosure; {2) becomes public knowledge through no act
or fault of the receiving Party, (3) the receiving Party lawfully acquires from a third party
which does not have a confidentiality obligation to the Parly to which the infonmation
periains; (4) is independently developed by the receiving Farty; or {5) is required to be
disclosed by law, Without the express written consent of BLE, this Agreement creates no
duties or liabilities of BLE to third parties who may rely on the Work provided or the
documents delivered hereunder. The Parties agree that although Client may provide copics
of BLE's reparts to prospective property purchasers and their agents, no party other than

4of4

Client, its counsel or sppropriate regulatory bodies may rely on the contents of BLE's
reports,

27. INDEMNITY. Tf Client or any of its directors, officers, shareholders,
employees, agents, atiorneys, successors, assigns and affiliates (eolleetively, the "Client
Alflizles") become subject to any claims, losscs, damages, penalties, actions, judgments,
suits, costs and reasonable expenses (incliding, without Jimitation, reasonable fees and
disbursements of attorneys and consuliants) (colleetively, "Claims”), caused by:
a. the negligence, gross negligence or willful misconduct of BLE or its
directors, officers, employees, subcontractors, agents and affiliates
(collectively, the "Representatives™);
b. a violation of an applicable statute or regulation by BLE or its
Representatives; and/or
c. a breach of this Agreament by BLE or its Representatives;
then DLE shall, subject to the limitation set out in Article 5 above, indemnify and hold
hannless Client and its Affiltates from and against such Claims. For purposes of the
preceding sentence, "negligence” shall be deemed to include both negligent acts and
omissions. This indemnification shall cnly extend to the proportional extent of BLE's
violation of law, breach of this Agreemeni, negligence or willful misconduct and shall not
extend to the proportional extent of Client’s violation of law, breach of this Agreement,
negligence or willful misconduet.

If BLE or any of its sharcholders, directors, officcrs, employees, agents, attormeys,
successors, assigns and affiliates (collectively, the "BLE Alfiliates") become subject to any
claims, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs and reasonable expenses
(imeluding, without limitation, reasonsble fees and disbursemcnts of attorneys and
consultants) (collectively, "Claims") cawsed by:

a. the negligence, gross oegligence or willfub misconduct of Client or its
directors, offi cers, shareholders, employees, subcontraclors, agents and
affiliates {collectively, the "Representatives"y;

b.  a viclation of an applicable statute or regulation by Clicnt or its
Representatives; and/or
a breach of this Agreement by Client or its Representatives;

then Client Ghall indemaify and hold harmtess BLE and its Affiliates from and against such
Claims. For purposes of the precediog sentence, "negligence” shall be deemed to include
both negligent acts and omissions. This indemnification shall anly extend to the
proportional extent of Client’s violation of law, breach of this Agreensent, negligence or
willful misconduct and shall not extend to the proportional extent of BLE’s violation of
Jaw, breach of this Agreement, negligence, or willlul misconduct.

It is agreed that all reasonably incurred costs of litigatioo incurred by the Indemnitees
inciuding, but not necessarily limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, consultant
costs, expert witness fees, and legal expenses, shall be deemed to be “'damages” payable
by Indemnitor but only to the proponticnal extent finally determined as beiog caused by the
willful misconduct, breach of contract, violation of law or the negligence of the Indemnitor,

28 NON-EXCLUSIVITY. The panties recognize and apree that RLE's services
bercunder are to be provided on a non-exclusive basis.

29, WAIVER/INTEGRATION. Whaiver by either Parly of any tenn, provision or
condition of this Agreement shall nol constitute 8 precedent or bind either party to a waiver
of any succeeding breach of the same or any other term, provision or condition of this
Agreement. This Agreement conslitules the entire agreement between Client and BLE and
there are no other agreements, oral or writlen, by and between the parties hereto, with
regard to the particular services/work set forth in the Proposal/Scope of WarldScope ol
Services.

30. TERMINATION.  This Agreement terminates automatically when all
services have been performed and when BLE is propely paid for the services set forth in
the Proposal. Either Party may terminate Lhis Agreement without cause upon 30 days
writlen notice to the other Party. In the cvent Client requesis termination prior lo
completion, Clienl agrees to pay BLE for all reasonable costs incurved to date and
reasonable charges associated with such termination.

31 SIGNAGE. BLE shall be entitled (o place a placard or other stand-alone or
attached signage on the project site identifying BLI as a future, present or past service
provider. Within a reasonable time afler BLE"s Work is completed or in the event this
Agreement is terminated, BLE shall be responsible for removing such signage.

NOTES: *Applies only if toxic or hazardons substances or constituents are anticipated or
encountered.
END OF DOCUMENT  PAS revision: 03-30-22




RESOLUTION EXEMPTING ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE SOLID WASTE
DEPARTMENT, DESIGN AND NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION PERMITTING AND CONSTRUCTION
MAINTENANCE, MACON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, FROM THE PROVISIONS
OF ARTICLE 3D OF CHAPTER 143 OF THE NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUTES

WHEREAS, Article 3D of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina  General  Statutes
establishes a general public policy regarding procurement of engineering services; and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes Section 143-64.32 provides:

"Units of local government or the North Carolina Department of Transportation may in writing
exempt particular projects from the provisions of this Article in the case of proposed projects where an
estimated professional feeis inanamountless than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000)"; and

WHEREAS, Macon County is now in need of engineering services for the design and permitting of
a deceleration lane at the future Carson Convenience Center; and

WHEREAS, the estimated professional engineering fee for these setvices in Macon County,
North Carolina is in an amount less than fifty thousand ($50,000) dollars.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF THE COUNTY OF MACON that the proposed engineering services for the Solid Waste
Department Convenience Center site development is hereby exempted in writing from the provisions of

Article 3D of Chapter 143 of North Carolina General Statutes pursuant to the provisions of
N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-64.32.

Adopted this 13" day of December, 2022.

Paul Higdon, Chairman
Macon County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Clerk to the Board

(COUNTY SEAL)






Mr. Chris Stahl, Director
October 5, 2022
Page 2 of 3

Construction Administration

1.

Schedule and conduct a Pre-Construction meeting with the County, contractor, and
CMT firm.

Provide on-sile construction observation (averaging approximately 16 hours per week)
to observe the overall progress and quality of the executed work to determine if the
work is proceeding in accordance with the plans and specifications. Construction
contract duration is anticipated to be 8 weeks.

Review and approve shop drawings, diagrams, illustration, brochures, catalog data
schedules and samples, the results of tests and inspections and other data that the
site contractor is required to submit.

Address questions from the contractor during the construction process.

Review monthly pay requests and any proposed change orders. Make
recommendation of payment to County.

BASIS OF COMPENSATION

We propose to perform the above outlined scope of work for the following fees:

Turn Lane Design and NCDOT Permitting (lump sum) $12,650,00
Bidding and Award (lump sum) $11,000.00
Construction Administration (hourly, estimated) $20,000.00

ASSUMPTIONS

Our fees above are based on the following assumptions:

1.

2.

See assumptions listed in TPD proposal dated September 23, 2022.
Cur fees do not include geotechnical borings or evaluation.
All permit and advertising fees will be paid directly by the County.

Value engineering or re-bidding is not included in the above scope of services and will
be billed on an hourly basis in accordance with the attached Basic Fee Schedule.

Detailed civil design, permitting, bidding, and construction of the convenience center
is not included.

Surveying information provided by Macon County is sufficient for design. If additional
surveying is required, we will notify the County.



Mr. Chris Stahl, Director
October 5, 2022
Page 3 of 3

7. Fee for testing services (i.e, soils, concrete, etc.) during construction will be paid for
directly by the Owner.

8. Aftendance at meetings not listed in the above scope of services shall be billed in
accordance with the attached Basic Fee Schedule.

9. Services for tasks other than those specifically detailed above shall be considered
additional services and billed in accordance with the attached Basic Fee Schedule.

We appreciate your consideration for our services and look forward to working with you. If the
above is acceptable to you, please sign and return one (1) copy of the attached Consulting
Services Agreement to us. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or
need additional information.

Sincerely,

McGILL ASSOCIATES, P.A.

SCOTT BURWELL, PE
Senior Project Manager

Altachments: Traffic Planning and Design, Inc. Proposal Dated September 23, 2022
Consulting Services Agreement
Basic Fee Schedule

CC: Mark Cathey, PE, McGill Associates, P.A. (via email)

P2019419.00708-MaconCoNC-Carson Center Upgrades\Admin\C ontractsi22-1005-Macen County Carson Center
Turn Lane Proposal.docx



CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

This contract entered into this 5™ day of October, 2022 by and between Macon County Solid Waste Department, hereinafter called the Client, and McGilt

Associates, PA;

Witnesseth that:

Whereas, the Client desires to engage McGill Associates to provide consulling services; and,

Whereas, the Client finds that the attached Scope of Services and terms of this agreement are acceptable; and,
Whereas, McGill Associates desires to provide said services and agrees lo do so for the compensation and upon the terms and
conditions as hereinafler set forth. Now, therefore, the parties hereto do mutualty agree as follows:

1. Scope of Services: McGill Associates shall provide lhe services aftached
hereto in the Contract Proposal "Scope of Services” of this Agreement,
hereinafter called services. Fees for additional services will be negotiated with
the Client prior to proceeding with the work.

2. Standard of Care: McGill Assaciates will perform ifs services using that
degree of skill and diligence nomally employed by professional engineers or
consultants performing the same services at tha time lhese services are
rendered.

3. Authorization to Proceed: Execution of this Consulting Services
Agreement will be considered authorization for McGill Associates to proceed
uniess otherwise provided for in this Agreement.

4. Changes In Scope: The Clienl may request changes in the Scope of
Services provided in this Agreement. If such changes affect McGill Associates
cost of or lime required for performance of the services, an equitable
adjustment will be made through an amendment to this Agreement.

5. Compensation; The Client shall pay the compensation to McGill
Associales set forth in the Coniract Proposal “Basis of Compensation”
attached herefo. Unless otherwise provided in the Basis for Compensation,
McGill Assoclates shall submit invoices to the Client monthly for work
accomplished under this agreement and the Client agrees to make payment
to McGill Associates within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoices. His also
mutually agreed that should the Client fail lo make prompl payments as
described herein, McGHI Associates reserves the right to immediately stop all
work under this agreement until disputed amounts are resolved.

8. Personnel: McGill Associates represents that it has, or will secure at their
own expense, all personnel required to perform the services under this
agreement and that such parsonnel will be fully qualified and adequately
supervised to perform such services. It is mutually understood that should the
scope of services require outside subconiracted experlise McGill Associates
may employ such seivices al their discretion.

7. Opinions or Estimates of Cost: Any cosls estimates providad by McGill
Associates shall be considered opinions of probable cosls. These along with
project economic evaluations provided by McGill Assoclates will be on a basis
of experience and judgment, but, since McGill Associates has no control over
market conditions or bidding procedures, McGill Associates cannot warrant
that blds, ultimale construction cost, or project economics will not vary from
these opinions.

8. Termination: This Agreement may be terminaled for convenience by either
the Client or McGill Associates with fifteen (15) days wrillen notice or if either
party fails substantially to perform through no fault of the other and does not
commence correclion of such non-performance within five (5) days of writlen
notice and diligenlly complete the correction thereafter. On termination, McGill
Associates will be paid for all authorized work performed up to the termination
date plus reasonable project closeout costs.

8. Limitation of Liablilty: McGill Associates Hability for Client's damages
will, in aggregate, not exceed the tolal fees paid by the Client for the Scope of
Services referenced herein or $50,000 whichever is greater. This provision
takes precedence over any conflicting provision of this Agreement or any
documents incorporated into it or referenced by #t. This limitation of liabitity

Client: Macon County Solid Waste Department

Authorized Signature:

Print Name: Chris Stahl
Title: Dircctor
Address: 109 Sicira Drive
Franklin, North Caroling 28734

will appty whether McGill Associales liability arises under breach of contracl or
wairanty; tort, including negligence; strict liabitity; statulory fiability; or any other
cause of action, and shall include McGill Associates' directors, officers, employees
and subcontractors. At additional cost, Client may oblain a higher limit prior to
commencement of services.

10. Assignabllity: This agreement shalt not be assigned or otherwise transferred
by either McGill Asscciates or the Client without the prior written consent of the
olher.

11. Sevoerability: The provisions of this ConsuHing Services Agreement shall be
deeamed severable, and the invalidily or enforceability of any provision shali not
affect the validity or enforceability of the other provisions hereof. If any provision of
this consulting services agreement |s deemed unenforceable for any reason
whatsoaver, such provision shall be appropriately limited, and given effect fo the
extent thal it may be enforceable.

12. Ownership of Documents: All documenis, calculalions, drawings, maps and
other items generated during the performance of services shall be considered
inteltectual property and remain the property of McGill Assoclales. Client agrees
that the deliverables are intended for the exclusive use and benefil of and may be
relied upon for this project only by the Client and will not be used otherwise. Client
agrees that any prospeclive lender, buyer, seller or third party who wishes to rely
on any deliverable musl first sign McGill Assoclates’ Secondary Client Agreement.

13. Excusable Delay: If performance of service is alfected by causes beyond
McGill Associates control, project schedule and compensation shall be equitably
adjusted.

14. Indempitication: Client agrees to indemnity, defend and hold McGill
Associates, its agents, employees, officers, directors and subconfractors harmless
from any and all claims, and costs brought against McGill Assaciates which arise in
whole or in part out of the failure by the Client to promptly and completely perform
its obligations under this agreement, and as assigned in the Contract Proposal
"Scape_of Services” or from Ihe inaccuracy or incompleteness of information
supplied by the Client and reasonably relied upon by McGil Associales in
performing ils duties or for unauthorized use of the deliverables generated by McGill
Associates. Furthermore, McGill agrees to indemnily, defend and hold the Ciient
harmless from any claims brought against the Client as a result of McGill's work.

16. Cholce of Law: This Agreement shall be governed by the inlernal laws of the
State of North Carolina.

16, Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains all of the agreements,
representations and understandings of the pariies hereto and svpersedes any
previous understandings, commitments, proposals, or agreements, whether oral or
written, and may only be modifted or amended as herein provided; and as mutually
agreed,

17. Attachments to this document:

1. Conlract Proposal including Scope of Services and Basis of
Compensation.

McGHll Associates, PA,

Print Name: Scott Burd?ll, PE

Title: Senior Project Manager
Address: 55 Broad Strect
Asheville, North Carolina 28801































































































































































ADJOURN: With no other business, at 6:50 p.m., upon a motion
from Commissioner Shields, seconded by Commissioner Shearl,
the board voted unanimously adjourn.

Derek Roland Paul Higdon
Ex Officio Clerk to the Board Board Chair

Minutes
12.05.22
Page 4 of 4







































Weast Main Street or FPAX to; 828-349-2400

Tejephone: Home |323-349-3422

y Qruestions, please call the County Manager's Office at (828) 349-2025

\pplication for Appointment to Macon County
Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees

e Macon County Board of Commisstoners believes all citizens ghould have the opporiunity to
icipate in govornmental decisions. The Board wants to appoint qualified, lnoveledgeable and
dicated people to setve on authoritios, boards and committees. If you have an interest in being
idered for an appolntment to any advertised vacancy, please thoroughly complete the form

of Authority, Bontd or Coromittoe applying for: IB oard of Health, Macon County, NC

= [Carlos Alberto Vargas

Aqdress|s3 Deefleld Ridge ‘Cty |Frankiin

_NCZip {26734

. Work (8284217386

upation IPhysician

Enail Addrese Ivargasca'l @fmnﬂer.com

Briefly explain any anticipated conflict of i urtetest you may hava if appolnted:

Ngne known

Echational Background

Al

B.»k. (1930) & MD, {1996) UNC-ChapeI Hilt

mess smd Cmc Expenmces/Shlls

ner, medical clinks; Healthy Carolinians; free clinlc; Haspice & Palliative Cere medieat director and co-founder of
el omhlp, varlous, lectures to medical and lay communitias; rnedrcal drfector of several nursmg homes (currently 4)

s of Expertiso and Interost/Skills:

14s

any Avthoritics, Boards, Commissions or Committees presently servipg on:

Fatify Medicine, Public Health; Post-acute & longterm care medicine; Hospsce&Pa!hatwe Cara mediclng; palilative
cafe consultations: medical acupuncture; Spanish {anguage; Community eduction; infectlon prevention; Quality
imgravement , . . . - . .

SIG!

D~

—

DATE:

Ity Assurance and Pracess Improvament Committees at 4 nursing homes; Executlve Board, Daniel Baona Council, .

?cTuts BSA

Nov 15,2022






|~ PrintForm

Application for Appointment to Macon County
Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees

The Macon County Board of Commissioners believes all citizens should have the opportunity fo
Participate in govemmental decisions, The Board wants to appoint qualified, knowledgeable and
dedicated people to serve on authorities, boards and committees, If you have an interest in being
considered for an appointment to any advertised vacancy, please thoroughly complete the form
below before the advertised deadline and choose from the following options.

Mail to: County Manager’s Office

5 West Main Street or FAX to: 828-349-2400
Franklin, North Carolina 28734

Any Questions, please call the County Manager's Office at (828) 349-2025

Name of Autherity, Board or Committee applying for: I/PI annip G\F"f) ool d
Name l Mar 1 Bfrv" » -

Addresslzoo’ﬁobb‘le Neal Dt cnyj Fran ) m NC Zip I 2873 L
Telephone: Home ‘ Work |L9 Z.8> 37200
Occupation I%L\S‘ﬂféﬁ uwneys

Business Address | 59 D1d Hhillips Bricke R “Fank L

Email Addcess [ pracK perry 1987 @ q rac)s Corm

Briefly explain any anticipated conflict of interest you fitay have if appointed:

Educational Background
1.}5\«\ 3ohool Sradu_Cd-c,

Business and Civic Experiences/Skills:

Shrined

0N
Areas of Expertise aud Interest/Skills:

Gradine
Developmen

List any Authorities, Boards, Commissions or Committees presently serving on:

%ﬁ\ﬁ%d

SIGNATURE: W%j %/L-\ o DATE: l/z -5-22
| {










	12.13.22 BOC Agenda Packet -- Part 1
	12.13.22 BOC Agenda Packet -- Part 2 (Reduced)
	12.13.22 BOC  Agenda Packet - Part 3 (Reduced)
	12.13.22 BOC Agenda Packet - Part 4 (Reduced)

